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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE s wm ko

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), the business
performance of Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended

31st December 2009 is summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS
The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2009

amounted to approximately HK$76,756,000, representing approximately
78.2% decrease compared to approximately HK$352,469,000 for the
year ended 31st December 2008.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$82,295,000 (2008: approximately HK$113,837,000),
a decrease of approximately HK$31,542,000 (approximately 27.7%).
The decrease in gross profit as compared to the year 2008 was
attributable to decrease in turnover from the sale of properties held for
sale, despite the fact that the Group has written back of provision for
properties held for sales of approximately HK$31,864,000 (2008: an
allowance of properties held for sale approximately HK$53,386,000) with

reference to the fair value of the properties held for sale.

In the year under review, exactly as previously adopted, the Group has
worked hard in cost controlling and concentrated on businesses of
promising return. For the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group’s
consolidated net profit was approximately HK$95,412,000 (2008:
approximately HK$68,565,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 39.2%. In year 2009, the Group had to account for gain on disposal
of subsidiaries of approximately HK$3,525,000 (2008: approximately
HK$2,497,000), gain on disposal of amounts due from joint ventures of
approximately HK$8,915,000 (2008: nil), loss in fair value of investment
properties of approximately HK$240,000 (2008: approximately
HK$6,260,000) and other net financial income of approximately
HK$24,830,000 (2008: other net financial expense of approximately
HK$12,665,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Property Development and Trading
The property businesses of the Group are mainly property development

and trading, and property investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s major property project in the PRC is Shun Jing Yuan in
Chaoyang, Beijing, a high-end residential apartment project with luxury
design in European-style. In respect of the project, the Group focused
on the fundamental works and imposed strict requirements on the
particulars, so as to ensure the quality of the project. Among the Blocks
2, 11 and 14 of Shun Jing Yuan (the “Properties”) held by the Group,
three units of Block 14 sold at the construction stage, the Group has
recognised revenue of approximately HK$20,897,000 in the 2nd half of
2009 in respect of the three units. Notwithstanding the Group has exerted
much effort in relation to the pre-sale preparation work for the project, the
developer of the project (the “Developer”) failed to completely fulfill the
terms in the sale and purchase agreements in relation to the Properties
signed between the Group and the Developer, and hence affecting the
Group’s established marketing strategy of the Properties. Also, having
been concerned about the probable impact on the marketing and selling
conditions caused by the recent change in mortgage policy for high-
end residential apartments in the PRC, both parties have thus mutually
agreed to enter into an agreement (the “Agreement”) after the reporting
date of these financial statements. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group
has to return the remaining Properties held to the Developer, and the
Developer has to pay to the Group an aggregate amount of RMB340
million (equivalent to approximately HK$386 million) as refund of the

acquisition costs of the remaining properties held and as compensation.

In Hong Kong, the Group is in possession of commercial properties for
sale and most of them are situated at the prime commercial districts,

Central and Queensway, Hong Kong.

Property Investment

For investment properties, Dawning Tower, located in Shenzhen, the
PRC, continued to secure a high occupancy rate. Accordingly, the Group
recognised an income of approximately HK$19,174,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 6.0% over the year 2008.

In order to maintain the prestigious status of Dawning Tower among
commercial buildings, the Group will continue to enhance the
management quality at Dawning Tower and maintain good relationship
with its customers. It is expected that the building’s occupancy rate will
continue to maintain at high level in the year of 2010. High occupancy
rate and effective cost control of Dawning Tower have secured steady net

operating profit from the building.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The properties for commercial uses at levels 4 and 5 of Beijing East Gate
Plaza, the PRC with 5,100 square metres, generated a rental income
of approximately HK$6,531,000 to the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2009, a decrease of approximately HK$397,000 as compared
with the year 2008.

In August 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity of Yue Tin
Development Limited (“Yue Tin”) (Please refer to the details at the
section “Major and Connected Transaction, Substantial Disposals and
Acquisitions” below), Yue Tin holds the commercial properties on the
whole 24th Floor of World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong and certain properties at Tai Hang, Hong Kong, South City
Road, Kowloon and in Beijing, the PRC (the “Acquired Properties”).
After acquisition of Yue Tin, the Acquired Properties are accounted for
as investment properties, and contributed revenue of approximately
HK$3,758,000 to the Group from rental of the Acquired Properties.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, all properties in Hong Kong of
the Group also contributed to the Group as rental income of approximately
HK$24,313,000, an increase of 293.0% as compared to approximately
HK$6,186,000 in the year 2008.

The global economic conditions have been recovered steadily in the second
half of year 2009. Thanks to the growth in domestic consumption in the PRC,
there is an acute increase in demand for the residential and commercial
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong, and the properties base of the Group
being broadened, it is expected that the growth in rental income in 2010 will

be sustainable and generate a steady cash inflow to the Group.

The Group will continue specialising in the PRC and Hong Kong property
investment and trading with prudent strategy in anticipation of steady
return. Besides, the Group will continue looking for suitable investment
opportunities in other areas, i.e. projects characterised by stable cash

inflows and simple management mechanism.

Capital Market Investment and Financial Services

The Group has all time endeavoured to increase the return from
current assets, therefore having diversified its investment portfolio
to accommodate more current assets with higher liquidity, including
securities, debt securities, currency-linked notes and equity-linked
notes, all being financial products with defined and limited risks, and not

belonging to any kind of accumulators.
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Financial and capital markets worldwide in 2009 have experienced
drastic change, investors’ sentiments changed from extremely pessimistic
to prudently optimistic, on the whole the Group’s performance in the
capital market investment was satisfactory, a gain of approximately
HK$24,830,000 was recorded for the year ended 31st December 2009,
while there was a loss of approximately HK$12,665,000 for the year
ended 31st December 2008.

The Group maintained a modest operation in provisions of financial
services business, providing short to medium term loans to the business
associates and partners. In view of the Group’s sufficient working capital
in the current period, as well as in the future, and bank deposits interest
rates remaining minimal, the business contributes a satisfactory return
to the Group, earning a profit of approximately HK$5,747,000 for the
year ended 31st December 2009. The Group at all time emphasises the
importance of risk control and executes seriously effective risk control
policies, which include assessment of the credit risks involved and/or

obtaining valuable securities.

OTHER BUSINESSES

Jingke Information

The Group disposed of the entire interest in Marax Development Limited
(“Marax Development”) (the “Disposal Equity”) on 7th December
2009 and the outstanding loans of RMB23,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$26,136,000) in aggregate and accrued interests thereof (the
“Debts”) due to the Group from Wu Han Jingke Information Industry
Co., Ltd. (“Jingke Information”) on 18th December 2009 respectively,
to two independent third parties as buyers. Marax Development, being
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, holds 51% equity of Jingke
Information, Jingke Information is mainly engaged in the manufacturing
of quartz oscillators (semi-finished products) used in the production
of various electronic products, resonators (final products), SMD and
related devices. Revenue and operating loss of Jingke Information
for eleven months ended 30th November 2009 were approximately
HK$19,230,000 and approximately HK$884,000 respectively.

In the past few years, management of the Group endeavoured to restructure
Jingke Information and spent a lot of time and resources, but the business
and operation performance of Jingke Information were still disappointing.

Meanwhile, for the purpose of resolving the recovery of the Debts, the
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management of the Group has also done a lot of work and engaged a PRC
lawyer to recover the Debts. Legal proceedings and arbitrations have been
involved during the period, but no fruitful result was achieved. Hence, the
management of the Group considered that the seeking of the two buyers
was a good opportunity for sale of the Disposal Equity and the Debts. It
was beneficial to the interests of the shareholders of the Company and the
Group as a whole. In the meantime, the management is enabled to focus on
the operation of other businesses of the Group. Further information of the
disposal of the Disposal Equity and the Debts is set out in the section “Major

and Connected Transaction, Substantial Disposals and Acquisitions” below.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group managed to maintain its liquidity at a healthy level, with
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounting to approximately
HK$325,970,000 as at 31st December 2009 (31st December 2008:
approximately HK$439,762,000). The Group exercised strict credit
control on its trade receivable to ensure the adequacy of the working
capital. As at 31st December 2009, trade receivable of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$3,333,000 (31st December 2008:
approximately HK$1,658,000). The current ratio as at 31st December
2009 was 16.3 while that as at 31st December 2008 was 12.9. As at 31st
December 2009 and 31st December 2008, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank loan. As at 31st December 2009 and 31st December
2008, the Group’s gearing ratio (on the basis of total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ equity) was maintained at a level of zero.

Treasury Management

In respect of financial resources management, the Group continued
diversification of its investment portfolio to accommodate more current
assets with higher liquidity, including securities, in order to enhance
the return of current assets. The aggressive and yet prudent financial
resources management policy would be continued to maximize
investments return within a reasonable risk level. Meanwhile, the Board
is of the opinion that the retaining of excessive cash and cash equivalents
as short-term deposits can ensure the Group to catch investment

opportunities agilely, thus increasing the return from investments.
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Purchase of all the Outstanding Warrants and issue of New Warrants

Pursuant to the offer letters and the acceptance letters executed on 15th
April 2009 between the Company and Ideal China International Limited,
Growth Time Holdings Limited, Trade Magic Limited and Topfirm Limited
(the “Existing Warrantholders”) (the “Offer and Acceptance Letters”), all
outstanding 240,000,000 warrants (the “Outstanding Warrants”) held by
the Existing Warrantholders, each Existing Warrantholder holding 25% (or
60,000,000 units) of the Outstanding Warrants, were sold by the Existing
Warrantholders to the Company at a consideration of HK$450,000 in
cash per offer under the Offer and Acceptance Letters or an aggregate
of HK$1,800,000 in cash. All the Outstanding Warrants have been
purchased and cancelled accordingly.

On 15th April 2009, the Company and Willfame Group Limited and
Year Top Limited (the “Subscribers”), both of them are independent
third parties, entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company issued to the Subscribers
unlisted 240,000,000 warrants in total (“New Warrants”), with each
Subscriber being allocated with 120,000,000 warrants, at an issue price
of HK$0.012 per New Warrants in cash. The holders of the New Warrants
are entitled to subscribe for new ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each in
the capital of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.20 per share
during the period of 36 months commencing from the date of issue of the
New Warrants. The subscription prices are subject to adjustments based
on the prescribed formula as set out in the instrument creating the New
Warrants for the happening of normal adjustment events. Further details
of this issue of New Warrants were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 15th April 2009. As at 31st December 2009, none of the
New Warrants has been exercised and there are 240,000,000 warrants

outstanding.

Pledge of Assets

As of 31st December 2009 and 31st December 2008, the Group has not
pledged any of its assets and bank deposits to obtain general banking
facilities or short-term bank borrowings.
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Employees’ Remuneration and Benefits

The Group had 47 employees including managerial, executive and
technical and general staffs in Hong Kong and the PRC as at 31st
December 2009 (31st December 2008: 47 (excluding about 250 staff and
production employees of Jingke Information)). The level of remuneration,
the promotion and the magnitude of remuneration adjustment are justified
according to their job duties, working performance and professional
experience. All staff and executive directors in Hong Kong office have
participated in the mandatory provident fund scheme. Other employees’
benefits include the granting of share options by the Board of the Group
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company.

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risk

All income and funds applied to the direct costs, the purchases of equipment
and the payments of salaries were dominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi; therefore, it was not necessary to use any financial instruments
for hedging purpose, and the Group’s exposure to the fluctuation of the
exchange risk was minimal. During the year under review, the Group has
not engaged in any hedging activities. As of 31st December 2009, cash
and cash equivalents of the Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. The other information of foreign exchange
and currency risks of the Group and the Company is set out in the section
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” in the notes to the

financial statements of this annual report 2009 of the Company.

Major and Connected Transaction, Substantial Disposal and Acquisition
Value Shine Limited (“Value Shine”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into an agreement on 4th June 2009 and an
supplemental agreement on 12th June 2009 with Junny Diamond Co.,
Limited (“Junny”), which is ultimately wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Wong Chung Tak, an executive director, the Chairman and substantial
shareholder of the Company, who is the guarantor thereof, pursuant
to which Junny has conditionally agreed to sell, and Value Shine has
conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire share capital and shareholder’s
loan of Yue Tin, at an aggregate consideration of HK$278,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) which was to be satisfied by the issue and allotment of
650,000,000 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company and cash
payment. Yue Tin holds certain properties in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
transaction has been approved by the independent shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 17th August 2009 and was completed on
19th August 2009. Further details of this transaction have been set out in
the circular of the Company dated 31st July 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR A am Mo AT

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Group and an
independent third party (the “Transferee (1)”) dated 7th December 2009,
the Group agreed to sell the entire equity in Marax Development to the
Transferee (1) (“Transfer of Equity”) at a consideration of RMB2,000,000
(equivalent to HK$2,273,000), Marax Development, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, holds 51% equity of Jingke Information. The
Transfer of Equity contributed to the Group a gain on disposal of subsidiary
of approximately HK$3,359,000. Meanwhile, pursuant to the other two
agreements entered into by the Group and another independent third party
(the “Transferee (2)") dated 18th December 2009, the Group agreed to
sell the loans due from Jingke Information to the Group of RMB23,000,000
(equivalent to HK$26,136,000) in aggregate and accrued interests thereof
to the Transferee (2) at a total consideration of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$9,091,000) (“Transfer of Loans”). Since the full provision has been
provided for the loans and the accrued interest, the Transfer of Loans
contributed to the Group a gain of approximately HK$8,915,000 in the year
2009. As at 31st December 2009, the considerations have been fully paid
by the Transferees (1) and (2).

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Company and an
independent third party on 9th December 2009, the Company agreed to
sell the entire equity in and its shareholder’s loan of Asset Wheel Limited
(“Asset Wheel”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to the
independent third party at a consideration of HK$6,800,000 and a gain
on disposal of subsidiary in the amount of approximately HK$166,000

was recorded upon completion.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Company and an
independent third party on 17th December 2009, the Company agreed
to sell the entire equity in Gateway Sino Limited (“Gateway Sino”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its shareholder’s loan to the
independent third party at a consideration of HK$10,400,000. Gateway

Sino held listed securities held for sale at the time of disposal.

Save as aforesaid, the Group had not participated in any substantial

acquisition and disposal during the year under review.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31st December 2009
and 31st December 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EELAREEAEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chung Tak

Aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director and Chairman of the
Board of the Company in October 2003. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Wong is also a director of each of the subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also the executive director and president of Thing On
Group Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wong has
been working in investment and finance companies for more than twenty
years and is the executive director of several local investment and finance
companies currently. Mr. Wong has solid experience and obtained
brilliant results in corporate development strategies, corporate operation
management, market and projects development. He has established
strong business connections and distribution network in the South East
Asia, and is especially strong in business development in the region. He
did not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past three

years.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Wong is interested in 1,054,017,589
shares of the Company, representing approximately 56.47% of the
total issued shares, held through Thing On Group Limited and Junny
Diamond Co., Limited, both companies are owned by Mr. Wong, and
he is interested in the share options of the Company exercisable into
7,100,000 shares of the Company granted to him and the share options of
the Company exercisable into 6,900,000 share of the Company granted
to his spouse. Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick, a non-executive Director of the
Company, is a son of the elder brother of Mr. Wong. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Wong does not have any relationship with any other Director,
senior management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. There is no service contract between the Company and Mr.
Wong, and the term of service is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Bye-Laws of the Company. The emolument of Mr. Wong for the year
ended 31st December 2009 is approximately HK$1,919,000 which is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as
well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEZNEREEAEEN

Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in
October 2003 and the deputy chairman in November 2006. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tse is also the
executive director of a local professional firm providing regulatory
compliance, corporate governance and corporate secretarial services to
listed and unlisted corporations. Mr. Tse is a member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Mr. Tse has more than fifteen years solid experience in
regulatory compliance, corporate governance and corporate secretarial
matters of listed and unlisted companies. He is the company secretary
of three Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Tse has been an executive
director of Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), during the period from 25th February 2008 to 15th April
2008. Save as disclosed above, he did not hold any directorship in other

listed companies in the past three years.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Tse is interested in the share options of
the Company exercisable into 7,100,000 shares of the Company. He does
not have any relationship with any other Director, senior management,
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. There is
no service contract between the Company and Mr. Tse, and the term
of service is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. The emolument of Mr. Tse for the year ended 31st December
2009 is approximately HK$712,000 which is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board with reference to
the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration

benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick

Aged 30, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company
in January 2004. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Business
Economics from Oxford Brookes University in the U.K. in the year 2001.

He possesses several years of experience in financial analysis. Mr.
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Wong is an executive director of a listed company on The Philippine
Stock Exchange, Inc., being responsible for the audit department of the
company. Save as aforesaid, he did not hold any directorship in other

listed companies in the past three years.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Wong is interested in the share options
of the Company exercisable into 6,900,000 shares of the Company.
Mr. Wong is a son of the elder brother of Mr. Wong Chung Tak, the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Wong does not have any relationship with any other Director,
senior management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. There is no service contract between the Company and Mr.
Wong, and the term of service is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company. The emolument of Mr. Wong for the
year ended 31st December 2009 is approximately HK$100,000 which
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as
well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market

conditions.

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris

Aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company in September 2003 and has been re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company in June 2009. He is a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising), the senior partner of Liu Leung Chan,
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from an American university and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr. Liu did not hold

any directorship in other listed companies in the past three years.

Mr. Liu does not have any interest in the shares of the Company. He
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. There
is no service contract between the Company and Mr. Liu, and the term
of service is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the

Company. The emolument of Mr. Liu for the year ended 31st December
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2009 is approximately HK$142,000 which is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board with reference to
the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration

benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company in June 2009. He is the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is also a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master of Professional
Accounting. Mr. Chung is a director of an accounting firm, Chiu, Choy &
Chung CPA Ltd., and has more than 19 years’ experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation. Mr. Chung is currently an independent non-
executive director of each of China Financial Leasing Group Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, Trasy Gold Ex
Limited and Great World Company Holdings Ltd., both companies are
listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Save as
aforesaid, Mr. Chung did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the past three years.

Mr. Chung does not have any interest in the shares of the Company.
He does not have any relationship with any other Director, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
There is no service contract between the Company and Mr. Chung, and
the term of service is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company. The emolument of Mr. Chung for the year ended
31st December 2009 is HK$116,000 which is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board with reference to
the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration

benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Aged 67, has been an independent non-executive Director of the
Company since July 1993. He is a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration and has over 26 years’ experience in the
trading and investment fields in the People’s Republic of China. Mr.
Lee was previously an executive director of Sun Hung Kai (China)
Limited; the vice president of telecommunication and investment
division, of Hong Kong First Pacific Group and an executive director
of PRC business development of Lucent Technology (China) Inc.. Mr.
Lee is currently holding senior positions in high-tech broadcasting and
telecommunication areas and is actively involved in China’s marketing
and investment activities. He did not hold any directorship in other listed

companies in the past three years.

Mr. Lee does not have any interest in the shares of the Company. He does
not have any relationship with any other Director, senior management,
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. There is
no service contract between the Company and Mr. Lee, and the term
of service is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. The emolument of Mr. Lee for the year ended 31st December
2009 is HK$200,000 which is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board with reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the

industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Miss Chong Kally

Aged 35, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company in November 2003. She is a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of
Association for Investment Management and Research. She graduated from
the University of Auckland with a Master in Engineering Management. She
majored in Electronic and Electrical Engineering in her undergraduate. Miss
Chong also pursued a Master in Business Administration in the Chinese
University of Hong Kong while working in Hong Kong. She has extensive
experience in the banking, finance and manufacturing sectors. Miss Chong

did not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past three years.
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As at the date of this report, Miss Chong is interested in the share
options of the Company exercisable into 6,900,000 shares of the
Company. She does not have any relationship with any other Director,
senior management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. There is no service contract between the Company and Miss
Chong, and the term of service is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company. The emolument of Miss Chong for the
year ended 31st December 2009 is approximately HK$200,000 which
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as
well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market

conditions.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Leung Shui Yin, Steven

Aged 48, was appointed as qualified accountant of the Company
with effect from 21st December 2006. Mr. Leung is a member of The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, CPA Australia and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has solid experience
in financial management, treasury management, internal control and
corporate finance, and has been working in listed companies for over 10

years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella was appointed as company secretary and
authorised representative of the Company with effect from 1st November
2006. Ms. Chan is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. She is also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 15 years experience in
handling listed company secretarial matters.
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Directors’ Report
EEeRE

The Directors’ present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the Group’s joint
ventures are set out in notes 39 and 18 to the financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 38.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year end date.
The net decrease in fair value of HK$240,000 has been charged directly
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and
15 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st December 2009, the Company had no reserves available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, except that under the laws
of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$602,457,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares and the Company’s contributed surplus account, in
the amount of approximately HK$271,423,000, may be distributed under
certain circumstances.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chung Tak
Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris (Re-designated as non-executive director on
4th June 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Koon Yan (Appointed on 4th June 2009)
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Miss Chong Kally
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87, Mr. Wong Chung
Tak, Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris and Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“2010 AGM”).

The independent non-executive directors are not appointed for specific
terms but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2010 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share Options” and “Substantial
Shareholders” below, as at 31st December 2009, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or any of their associates had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
recorded in the registers maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 30th May 2002, a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The New Scheme
replaced the share option scheme adopted on 17th November 2000 (the
“Old Scheme”). After the adoption of the New Scheme, no further options
can be granted under the Old Scheme. Particulars of the Company’s
share option schemes are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during the year
ended 31st December 2009 are set out below:

Old Scheme
There was no outstanding share option granted under the Old Scheme
during the year ended 31st December 2009.
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New Scheme stEl

Number of shares fall to be issued
under the share options

REBRETRITROHE
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
Date of Exercise period of at 1st Granted/ at 31st
grant of period of share January (Lapsed) December
share share options™ 2009 during 2009
Name of participants options* options™ REBRE R-TZIAE  theperiod RZBETHhE
or category RiE B ARTRE —-A—B HgEL/ +=A=+-H
SREREHAR RERHE* fTfEER fTEE= 18 RAT B (&%) i RATHE
Directors
£
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
TiamELAE 29.05.2012
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
HERBEE 29.05.2012
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 to 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
IEEE 29.05.2012
Miss Chong Kally 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 to 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
HEME 29.05.2012
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
Other employees
HitfEs
In aggregate 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 to 0.72 13,800,000 - 13,800,000
B 29.05.2012
Eligible participant 12.2.2007 21.02.2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
SEKRSEE 29.05.2012
48,900,000 - 48,900,000
Notes: B %
* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the * Sy AL = 62 B HA T (4% H B B E S e AR
commencement of the exercise period. BItE A LE o
o The exercise period will lapse in three months after the resignation of the grantee. *x TTEEARI S N AR E BT E A sk o
***  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of xRN FIMETALAS « BETAT AR SRR AN B AR KR (A
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. ) R TEEETRE -

— ==

options had been granted and remaining outstanding under the share RBEHE DY MR T e SR RREY
option schemes was 48,900,000 shares, representing 2.62% of the B35 81 B 548,900,0000% + FENERA IR
shares of the Company in issue at that date. H> BT 2.62% o

As at 31st December 2009, the number of shares in respect of which R-TTHE+—B=+—H  BEREER
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Options” above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2009, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each

BEROIEZ 2L

B EXCTRBAHE | — PR IREEE SN - ARRHE
ERIME A RN FE AR E2 B ER L - RE
ARRBEFHEBITRABAEBEAARX
ERTEMER Z RO EH M -

FERR

RIBBAF+TZA=+—RH  ARFREE
7 M ERERPIE 336 R F B 2 T ERR B LM
B BEXFRBEARE TESRIETH
ABZHERIN ATERREMERAREER
ARRBETRA A kS

BREEO0.20 BLEBRZEFA

Number of shares held

RGOS E
Percentage in
total number of
issued shares
e BT
Name of shareholder Direct interest Indirect interest Total B4 %
RRE®E HiEgs B k] BOL
Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Note) 7,100,000 1,059,769,589 1,066,869,589 57.16%
TIaESE (A7)
Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny (Note) 6,900,000 1,059,969,589 1,066,869,589 57.16%
REFRT (§:7)
Thing On Group Limited (Note) 402,869,589 650,000,000 1,052,869,589 56.41%
Thing On Group Limited (##%)
Thing On Holdings International Limited (Note) - 650,000,000 650,000,000 34.82%
Thing On Holdings International Limited (/#77#)
Junny Diamond Co., Limited (Note) 650,000,000 - 650,000,000 34.82%
ERERERDE (1)
Note: Hisz:

Junny Diamond Co., Limited (“Junny”) is wholly-owned by Thing On Holdings
International Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Thing On Group Limited, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Chung Tak, an executive Director
and Chairman of the Company. Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny (“Ms. Ng”) is the spouse of
Mr. Wong, and both of them are deemed to be interested in (i) options granted by the
Company to Mr. Wong exercisable into 7,100,000 shares of the Company; (ii) options
granted by the Company to Ms. Ng exercisable into 6,900,000 shares of the Company;
(iii) 402,869,589 shares held through Thing On Group Limited; and (iv) 650,000,000
shares held through Junny.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as at 31st December 2009.

BEFNEAARAB(EF]) - BThing On Holdings
International Limited 2 & #H * IMEIRA RG] ZHITE
EREFETRELEE2EEZEAZThing On Group
Limited 2 & %A - RErrt+ (R4t ) AT AR
18 o AR BAR AR () AR 81 F F % 4 2 7,100,000
REBEARAE ¢ (if) A B4 F R 2042 6,900,000 A% 3% A4
(iii) 3% 8 Thing On Group Limited 3578 2 402,869,589 A% #%
7+ R(iv) BBEFIHAE 2 650,000,000 B B 1

fol)

BREXBEEEN R_FETAF+ A
=t+—B  ARATAHBEEMENARF KD
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group has the following
continuing connected transactions which are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.34 of
the Listing Rules:

(1) On 19th August 2009, Yue Tin Development Limited (“Yue Tin”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement (“World-Wide Tenancy Agreement”) with Junny, for the
leasing to Junny the property located at Room 2401, 24th Floor,
World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong from
19th August 2009 to 31st December 2011 at a monthly rental of
approximately HK$267,000.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the aggregate rental
received from Junny in respect of the World-Wide Tenancy
Agreement amounted to approximately HK$1,178,000.

(2)  On 19th August 2009, Yue Tin entered into another tenancy
agreement (“Ronsdale Tenancy Agreement”) with Junny for the
leasing to Junny the property located at Flat A, 23rd Floor, Block
2, and Car Parking Space No.31 on 2nd Basement, Ronsdale
Garden, 25 Tai Hang Drive, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from
19th August 2009 to 31st December 2011 at a monthly rental of
approximately HK$27,000.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the aggregate rental
received from Junny in respect of the Ronsdale Tenancy
Agreement amounted to approximately HK$118,000.

On 16th June 2009, the Company has published an announcement
that the annual caps for the financial year ended 31st December 2009
in respect of the World-Wide Tenancy Agreement and the Ronsdale
Tenancy Agreement are approximately HK$1,333,000 and approximately
HK$134,000 respectively.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

1. in the normal and usual course of the Group’s business;

2. on normal commercial terms; and

3. have been carried out in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Auditors of the Company have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and provided a letter to the Company confirming
that the above continuing connected transactions:

1. have received the approval of the Board;

2. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing the transactions; and

3. have not exceeded the annual cap.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 95.4% of the Group’s total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 83.9% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 52.0% of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the
largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 17.8% of
the Group’s total sales.

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates, nor any
shareholder which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period.

PRE-EMPTVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st December 2009.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date are set out
in note 40 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditors of the Company with
effect from 26th July 2007, and Grant Thornton was appointed as
auditors of the Company at a special general meeting of the Company
held on 27th August 2007 to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Save as aforesaid, there were no changes
in auditors during the past three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2010 AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Grant Thornton as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
Wong Chung Tak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8th March 2010
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The Company is committed to maintaining corporate governance of
high standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and
quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for

the sake of maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance practices. The Company has also complied with all the
code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviations from code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 which are explained in the following relevant

paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’

securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31st December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company, as
well as the supervision of the business, approval of strategic plans and

monitoring the Company’s performance.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s latest

developments and thus can assist them in discharging their duties.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and draft of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes books
are kept by the Company Secretary and will be opened for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws and

regulations are complied with.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be divided. The roles and functions of the chief
executive officer have been performed by the Board of the Company and
the Directors believed that such arrangement enables different talents and

expertise of the Directors to be best utilized to the benefits of the Group.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. Non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but they
are subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years in

accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with specific terms
of reference, which is responsible for arranging new appointment of directors
and senior executives of the Company, and for reviewing the succession plan

for executive directors and senior executives of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of two executive Directors, two non-

executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chung Tak
Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris
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Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Miss Chong Kally

To the best knowledge of the Company, Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick, a non-
executive Director of the Company, is the son of the elder brother of Mr.
Wong Chung Tak, the Chairman and executive Director of the Company.
Save as aforesaid, there is no financial, business and family relationship
among members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise their
independent judgment. The biographies of the Directors are set out in

pages 12 to 17 of the annual report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the Company

has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, of whom
Mr. Chung Koon Yan, is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has more than 19 years’ experience in

accounting, auditing and taxation.

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart, has been serving the Board for more than
16 years. Mr. Lee is a man of integrity and is experienced in management
and development of business in the PRC. During the services to the Board
in the past years, he contributed to the Board and the Company valuable
advice on diverse aspects.

Miss Chong Kally is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of
Association for Investment Management and Research. She has been

working in the banking finance sector over 10 years.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS
During the year ended 31st December 2009, 6 Board meetings were

held. All Directors are given an opportunity to include any matter in the
agenda for regular Board meetings and are given sufficient time to review
the documents and information to be discussed in Board meeting in
advance.

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended
Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Chairman) 6/6
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 6/6

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 5/6

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris* 6/6

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Koon Yan* 3/3
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 6/6
Mr. Chong Kally 5/6
* Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris has been re-designated as a non-executive Director of the

Company on 4th June 2009.

# Mr. Chung Koon Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 4th June 2009, and 3 Board meetings were held after his

appointment.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board, namely
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Operational Committee, to oversee different aspects of the Group’s affairs

and to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Audit Committee consists of all the independent non-executive

Directors.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the members of the Audit

Committee consisted of:

Mr. Chung Koon Yan (Chairman) *
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Miss Chong Kally

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris*

# Mr. Chung Koon Yan was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company on 4th June 2009.

* Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company following his re-designation as a non-executive Director on 4th June
2009.

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee with reference to standards stipulated in code provisions. The

major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

- to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any issue in relation to the

resignation or dismissal of such auditors;

- to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards. The Committee should discuss with the
auditors the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations

before the audit commences;
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to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company and the
Company’s annual report and accounts and interim reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them. In this regard, in reviewing the Company’s annual report and
accounts and half-year reports before submission to the Board,
focusing particularly on any significant adjustments resulting from
the audit; the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
compliance with accounting standards and compliance with the
Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

to review the Company'’s financial controls, internal control and risk

management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget;

to consider any findings or major investigations of internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or its own initiative and

management response;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resources and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and to review and monitor the

effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and

practices;

to review the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditors to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

management’s response; and

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues

raised in the external auditors’ management letter.
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During the year ended 31st December 2009, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary
financial information of the Group for members to consider, review and

access significant issues arising from the work conducted.

The following table shows the attendance of members at meetings of the

Audit Committee during the year:

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended
Mr. Chung Koon Yan* 1/1
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 2/2
Miss Chong Kally 2/2
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris* 1/1
# Mr. Chung Koon Yan was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee of

the Company on 4th June 2009, and 1 Audit Committee meeting was held after
his appointment.

* Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company following his re-designation as a non-executive Director on 4th June
2009, and 1 Audit Committee meeting was held before his re-designation.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

- reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31st December
2008 and the interim results for the six months ended 30th June
2009;

- discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of accounting standards and
policies of the Group in the preparation of the 2009 interim and
annual financial statements;

- reviewed and discussed with the external auditors over the financial

reporting of the Company;

- recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of

the re-appointment of the auditors; and

- reviewed the internal control procedures of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of one executive or non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors, and an
independent non-executive Director should take up the role of chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee currently
comprises one executive Director, Mr. Wong Chung Tak, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chung Koon Yan (as
Chairman), Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart and Miss Chong Kally.

The major roles and functions of the Group’s Remuneration Committee
are, but not limited to, as follows:

- to make recommendation to the Board on matters relating to
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

- to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Committee should consider factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

- to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time;
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- to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair and
not excessive for the Company;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration; and

- to form a view in respect of service contracts that require
shareholders’ approval and advise shareholders (other than
shareholders who are Directors with a material interest in the
service contracts and their associates) as to whether the terms
are fair and reasonable, to advise whether such contracts are in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, and
advise shareholders on how to vote.

During the year ended 31st December 2009, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings for reviewing the remuneration package of
the Directors of the Company, and the remuneration of the proposed new
Director of the Company.

Name of members Number of meetings attended
Mr. Chung Koon Yan (Chairman)t 0/0
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 2/2
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 2/2
Miss Chong Kally 2/2
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris* 2/2
# Mr. Chung Koon Yan was appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee of the Company on 4th June 2009, and no Remuneration Committee
meeting was held after his appointment.

* Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company following his re-designation as a non-executive Director on 4th
June 2009, and 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were held before his re-
designation.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of one executive or non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors, and an
executive Director should take up the role of chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee currently comprises one
executive Director Mr. Wong Chung Tak (as Chairman), and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr.
Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart and Miss Chong Kally.

The major roles and functions of the Group’s Nomination Committee are,

but not limited to, as follows:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed

change;

- to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection

of individuals nominated for directorships;

- to access the independence of independent non-executive

Directors; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on relevant issues relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession

planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and president.

During the year ended 31st December 2009, the Nomination Committee
held 2 meetings to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and the Directors to be re-elected at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company before put forth for discussion and
approval by the Board, and also reviewed the composition of the Board;

and recommended the nomination of new Director.
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Name of members Number of meetings attended

Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Chung Koon Yan* 0/0
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 2/2
Miss Chong Kally 2/2
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris* 2/2
# Mr. Chung Koon Yan was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee

of the Company on 4th June 2009, and no Nomination Committee meeting was

held after his appointment.

* Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee
of the Company following his re-designation as a non-executive Director on 4th
June 2009, and 2 Nomination Committee meetings were held before his re-

designation.

OPERATIONAL COMMITTEE

The Operational Committee of the Company was established on 18th
March 2005, and the quorum of the Committee consists of at least two

executive Directors and one independent non-executive Director.

The Operational Committee meets on ad hoc basis to exercise the powers,
authorities and discretions of the Board in accordance with the written

terms of reference.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely

publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditors of the Company, Messrs.
Grant Thornton, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 36 and 37.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31st December 2009, the remuneration paid/payable

to the Company’s auditors, Grant Thornton, is as follows:

Services rendered B2 R%E
Audit services %R
Non-audit services IERZ B RS
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a proper and effective
system of internal control of the Group. The internal control system
includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board has delegated to management the implementation of all
relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
function without a defined framework. During the year ended 31st
December 2009, the Board has conducted a review of the system of
internal control to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the system.
The Board shall conduct such review at least once annually.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company’s annual general meeting is a valuation
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees together with the external auditors are
present to answer shareholders’ questions. The annual report together
with annual general meeting circular is distributed to all the shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the annual general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders

at a general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions
set out in the notice of the AGM will be voted by poll.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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o Grant Thornton
B E

To the members of Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
High-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 38 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31st December 2009, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and

a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

8th March 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e EHEWER

For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZET)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FHET FAT
Revenue PN 5 76,756 352,469
Cost of sales and services (including write SHE MR A (BIERE
back of provision for properties held for FFEY 5 31,864,000 7T
sale of HK$31,864,000 (2008: allowance of (=TT /)\4F : FEE
properties held for sale of HK$53,386,000))  #& 53,386,000 7#7T)) 21(a) 5,539 (238,632)
Gross profit mAERE 82,295 113,837
Other net financial income/(expense) Hihepilzs /(FX) 8 7 24,830 (12,665)
Other income H iz 8 1,020 5,988
Selling and distribution costs SHE Mo HA (2,642) (1,089)
Administrative expenses TR (15,421) (15,474)
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HEHBA Rz WS 3,525 2,497
Gain on disposal of amounts due HEREKE &
from joint ventures EFIE 2 W 8,915 =
Loss in fair value of investment properties WEYENTEEE 14 (240) (6,260)
Profit before income tax R P 15 8% Al 7 9 102,282 86,834
Income tax expense FiiSfif > 10 (6,870) (18,269)
Profit for the year FEERRN 95,412 68,565
Other comprehensive income Hih 2z
Exchange difference on translation HEIRINETS
of foreign operations N R - 12,690
Exchange difference on translation of HEIRINETS 2
foreign operations released upon PE N Z RN HE
disposal of a subsidiary i bpEE NS [i55:453 (887) -
Statutory reserve released upon disposal EERBERLE
of foreign operations RONETS AR BR (190) -
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income for 2 AR 12
the year, net of tax 2HE (X)W (1,077) 12,690
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZHWEEEE 94,335 81,255
Profit for the year attributable to: FERARFERR
Owners of the Company AKRARIER A 11 95,412 68,565
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERGEEE
attributable to: U 54858 -
Owners of the Company AARIER A 94,335 81,255
HK cents HK cents
Earnings per share attributable to AABEE AL AL il
the owners of the Company HERER 12
— Basic —EK 6.55 5.61
— Diluted —#E 6.31 N/A TN A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra B BIRE

As at 31st December 2009 R=—TZNF+—A=+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Interests in joint ventures
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Properties held for sale
Trade receivables
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
Prepaid lease payments
Amounts due from joint ventures
Loans and receivables
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Other payables, deposits received
and accrued charges

Tax payables

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

Wong Chung Tak
FHRE

Director

EF

2009 2008
—EBBNE  —TIT)\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
bz FET FAET
EERER
FkRBEE
REMZE 14 533,477 238,740
Wz - BB RS 15 3,407 1,504
FEFAERE 16 18,263 3,700
REBLERER 18 - -
At ESREE 20 2,300 =
557,447 243,944
REBEE
FEMHE 21 612,653 486,500
FEULER X 22 3,333 1,658
HE gl - ERERIES 22 8,437 7,094
EREERE 16 227 100
EURA EERIE 18 - -
B R EW A 23 20,400 13,000
BEATEYABZER
ZEmMEE 24 11,885 65,263
RERREEE 25 325,970 439,762
982,905 1,013,377
HREEE
PTESRMTA 26 - 9%
HAab e F0E - EUUR
S REEA 27 52,104 66,654
JES IR 8,338 12,023
60,442 78,773
RBEEFE 922,463 934,604
BREERABEE 1,479,910 1,178,548
kRBER
BEEFIEEE 28 17,880 15,742
EERE 1,462,030 1,162,806
e
AAREE AE(ERERS
A&7 29 373,321 243,321
s 31 1,088,709 919,485
B 1,462,030 1,162,806
Tse Kam Fai
e
Director
BE
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Statement of Financial Position
WS AR R R

As at 31st December 2009 R=—ZTZhF+=-A=+—H

2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiRE FHBxT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BE MR 5 158 193
Interests in subsidiaries LY EEPNGI b 17 12,998 12,998
13,156 13,191
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits At fEU TR ~ TERFIE Mizd 22 3,291 1,181
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E e 17 1,129,807 754,284
Financial assets at fair value BAFAETABREREZ
through profit or loss TREE 24 11,885 55,012
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEE 25 105,262 239,882
1,250,245 1,050,359
Current liabilities REBAE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTA 26 - 96
Other payables, deposits received HibEARIE - BEliRe
and accrued charges KEETER 27 1,535 1,550
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETB B A TR IE 17 104,372 115,374
Tax payables FERI B 1,124 4
107,031 117,024
Net current assets REEEFE 1,143,214 933,335
Net assets EEFE 1,156,370 946,526
EQUITY R
Share capital N 29 373,321 243,321
Reserves A 31 783,049 703,205
Total equity A 1,156,370 946,526
Wong Chung Tak Tse Kam Fai
FHAE R
Director Director
EF EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—A= N\ 7/
Z’/_\_: /—\ / N ml:ln\ @J %
n

For the year ended 3lst December 2009 #Z=E

—PTAFHoASH—ALFE

(Accumulated
Share Capital ~ Statutory ~~losses)/
Share Share  Contributed ~ Translation option ~ Warant redemption ~ resee  Retained
capital  premium  suplus  resee  resewe  reseme  resene fund  eamings Total
BRE ARE EfER iR (2EFE)/
BE  ROEE A6EH ENGE BE  BBE i B¢ REEA 5
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000
Tt TE  TE  TEr  Thm  TEr  TEm  TAr  TEr T
{13y 208 HoBENE-A- Mys R BT A% S ¥ - B Q6 Lol
Shares repurchased Bk (4623 (10080) - - - %) - - (10080
Expenses incurred in connection wih EEEDRAT
repurchase of shares EERR - (60) - - - - - - - (60)
Transactions with owners EEEENRS (4623)  (10140) - - - - 4B - (0140
Prfit for the year EEg = = - = - - - - 65
Other comprehensive income Eh2ENE
Exchang diference arsing on ranslaton AL
of foreign operafions EfzERzE - - - 160 - - - = - 180
Total comprehensive income for the year EERAhEEE - - - 16% - - - - 8% 8%
Transter ofcontibuted surpls BRI - - [3I67%) - - - - - 367 =
Appropriafon o - - - - - - - 19 (19 -
At 31st December 2008 WBEN\ET2A=1-A 4331 8t 21143 91T 598" 3 564" 4603 080 686" 1162806
At st January 2009 W-EEnE-5-A 3N b6 14N 36977 5% 3064 4623 08 68546 1162806
Purchase and cancellaion of outstanding BORHERAARE
ulisted warrants LR - - - - - (180 - - - (180
Expenses incurred incomnecton vith purchase ~ BBBERGHERAAE 2L
and cancellfon of outstanding vrants TAREAMELZFX - - - - - (52) - - - (52)
Issue of new unlisted warrants B EART - - - - - - - -
Expenses incured in connecton with BRI e
issue of e unlisted warrants EMEECEY - - - - - (50) - - - (50)
Shares issted upon acquisiion of asubsidlay — RABHBA R TR
(note 30 (3) 13000 7391 - - - - - - -
Transactions with owners EEEENRS 130000 7391 - - - 918 s = -8
Proftfor the year ERER - - - - - - - T %412
Other comprehensive income Eh2E4E
Release upon disposal of  subsidiary HERBLTRER - - - (887) - - - (19) -
Total comprehensive income for the year EERAbRaE - - - (887) - - - 19 %42 UMb
Transferto refaned eamings ERERAER - - - - - (1m - - =
Appropriafon o - - - - - - - 8 @) -
At 31t December 2009 R-EEAETZA=1-H 373321 602457 271423 36,090¢ 5,598+ 2830F 4623 26 165662F 1462,030

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$1,088,709,000 (2008: HK$919,485,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

* ZERBEAERNEAMNBRARZEERHE
1,088,709,000/&7T (= F%/\4F : 919,485,000/ L) «
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COnsoIidated Statement of Cash Flows
\\/T\ fﬁimb %

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE TR A E+—

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Loss in fair value of investment properties
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries
Gain on disposals of amounts due
from joint ventures
Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries
Reversal of provision of amounts
due from a joint venture
Written off of other payables and accruals
(Write back of provision)/Allowance for
properties held for sale

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital

Increase in properties held for sale

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

(Increase)/Decrease in loans and receivables

Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

(Decrease)/Increase in derivative
financial instruments

(Decrease)/Increase in other payables,
deposits received and accrued charges

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

A=+—HLFE

RELBELECRSTHE
BRFTS TR A
BEA TR
FIBHA
neE
B EE IS H
LEMENTERE
HEWE - BEREE2ER
HEHB DRz Y
HERKAEERE
HIEZ W
B ARz WS
ERAEREFE
ZERER
HsHE A FE TR R R B A
(BEFEMERRE)
S HEMEER

KRt BBEESEHA
LERERE
FEmELM
FEUBR FR I
HibelsE - BRZRER

oyl
B R ERIE (35m) /R
BRAFENABSEMNSE
ZERBERD, /(M)
fTHEERTA

(R, #n
Hibpefiz8 - BdRE R
FEETE R ORid), /1 n

LERE(BA)/EE2RE
BETER

RE£% (BA)/ELZREFE
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Notes

et

14

35

2009 2008
ZEEhE —ZEN\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR
102,282 86,834
(10,945) (11,282)
570 810

140 100

240 6,260

49 85
(3,525) (2,497)
(8,915) -
- (353)
- (143)
(325) (40)
(31,864) 53,386
47,707 133,160
(94,289) (60,046)
(1,675) (464)
(3,343) (3,197)
(7,400) 87,124
43,168 (53,076)
(96) 96
(16,923) 24,274
(32,851) 127,871
(8,417) (11,370)
(41,268) 116,501




(:onsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

w N fﬁi/nb %

For the year ended 31st December 2009 &%=

—PTAFHoASH—ALFE

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchases of prepaid lease payments
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets
Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash and
cash equivalents disposed of
Proceeds from redemption of debt securities
Proceeds from disposals of amounts
due from joint ventures
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash and
cash equivalents acquired
(Advance to)/Repayments from a joint venture
Repayments from related companies
Disposals of investment properties

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cancellation of outstanding unlisted warrants

Expenses incurred in connection with purchase
and cancellation of outstanding warrants

Repurchase of shares

Expenses incurred in connection with
repurchase of shares

Issue of warrants

REXRELZRERE
EBAE
BRENEENE
BENE  BELR
BREUHNESREE
HEME - MERREZ
S 5UR
HEMBRR - BAHEZ
ReRkAeEE
BOERESR L AS50R
HERKAELRFA
PSR
W —ZMBAR - TatATRE
RekAeEE
—RAALEZ (B),/BX
BERR &N
HEREMSE

REXK(EBA) /BRLZ
ReFE

BMELKELCRASRE
AR ITE 2 TR REE
BRAER KM A TE 2 IE LT
RRAEEMEE 2 BX
BERR

BEBERAMT

EEZEY

BITRRAEE

Expenses incurred in connection with issue of warrants 8 B 21T E B MEE 2 F X

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities Bi&EENAK,/(BBR) 2B 458

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&RELZE (RD) L INFE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

FAZRERREEE
SNEERZH B

FRZAERALEE

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents & R B & S ELEH D

Bank balances and cash

Time deposits with original maturity of
less than three months

Highly liquid fund

RITERERS

FRAEEHRAAR=AZ
EHER

BRPtES

2009 2008

—2EhF —E2EN\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i TET TR
10,945 11,282

(1,410) =
(1,463) (467)
(2,300) (7,794)

201 120

B9 14,648 6,366
- 15,956

9,091 =

34 (103,531) -
(176) 143

- 13,767

- 52,248

(73,995) 91,621

(1,800) =

(52) -
- (10,080)
- (60)

2,880 -

(50) -
978 (10,140)

(114,285) 197,982

439,762 228,138

493 13,642

325,970 439,762

48,198 51,712

271,772 240,323

- 147,727

325,970 439,762
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Notes to the Financial Statements
M RERMITE

For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —R&ER
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was FHNBREIZER AR G ([AAR D) RERES
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited ks BERE AR AR - A EENE
liability. The addresses of its registered office and principal DM IR AFER AR BT
place of business are disclosed in the corporate information 5 o ARRIZBO N BB EXZFBRAA
to the annual report. The Company’s shares are listed on The ([BE32AT)) B e

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of AARAE—EREZERAR - HEZHBA A
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 ZEB BN B REMTEI o AAF RHE
to the financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries MEBARERARA [AEE] - REEEEH
are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group is EMERE  BEILEE  BHEERFSRE
principally engaged in property investment, development E - RIREESRRS - AEE 2 EBRFEAIL
and trading, securities investment and securities trading, H|EANEE) o

and provision of financial services. There were no significant
changes in the Group’s operations during the year.

Upon completion of the acquisition of the entire equity interest REKKERBEREARAR ([1H]) 25
in Yue Tin Development Limited (“Yue Tin"), 56.47% of the #1% > Thing On Group Limited (—EREEE
Company’s shares are held by Thing On Group Limited, a ZEEFHMKZ 2 AR NG BREE56.47%
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as at the KRB - ZRZFBHNRBHAEZZTTAN
reporting date. Details of this transaction have been set out in FLA=Z+T—HZARTEE - EERE R
the Company’s circular dated 31st July 2009. In the opinion of ZEVBHRERP ARG ZHEERAFAR
the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company Thing On Group Limited °

of these financial statements is Thing On Group Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong GRAEPBHERINRET (BTl 25 &ENAE
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of AARZNEEEE - BBRAIEHR - HEUEREA
the Company and are rounded in thousands unless otherwise EETHET -

stated.

The financial statements on pages 38 to 143 have been REEISEEFILBEZUBRRIBES
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting B SHREEL ([ BEMEREED ) - Z45
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes HAREERERETAE ([EESFMA
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting @ |) Bz BT A E R E 8 B ISR & 4
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) Bl - HE G EAN(HEBSEL]) k2E
and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong ([BR)) - AMBmMERINBIEE B R HEH K&
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The B R FTES E AR RIRE 2 EMAREEIE -

financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st December E_ETENFT_A=1+—HULFEZUH
2009 were approved for issue by the board of directors on WERR—_ZE—ZEF=-F/\BEEZESSHET
8th March 2010. %o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS ¥R et

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2. I RBIIERMERE
HKFRSs % |
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time RAEE  NEFEBIEREEELHTAS
the following new standards, amendments and interpretations B Z AT HFER - BT BB ((FTEEH
(the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are FEIREAR| ) HEEBFEBRERR TS
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial statements NE— A —BRFth 2 EEHE 2 NEB B %R
for the annual period beginning on 1st January 2009: %o
HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements
BEGTERE 15K (T HFLBE]) g HE 2 25
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing costs
BEAGHERIE 235 (Z T EFLEE]) (RN
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,

jointly controlled entity or an associate

BB GHERIE 27 5% (BRI A) BER—HMBRR - HEEHE S E R R/
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based payment — vesting conditions and cancellations
BAVBEIREERE 25 (BETA) VAR 2 A 2 P2 — SRR 11 Bt
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving disclosures about financial instruments
BBV BIMELRNE 75 (BEFTA) RS R T AR
HKFRS 8 Operating segments
BB HREXERE 857 EEDE
Various Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2008
BI8 T N\FEBIMBME LR 2 FEBGEIR B
Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs BATEEREEIN - TRANFT BB ISR E %R
had no material impact on how the results and financial HAFE MARTEA R R FEE LB R RR &
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared E2IEHERTE -

and presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Y g N

For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2. BRMFFT R TR KERE
HKFRSs (CONTINUED) 28| (&)
HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial ERGTHERNE 1R (S22 LELER])
statements B mER 225
The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain RABEBSHENE 1R (ZESEFLIBE])
changes to the format and titles of the primary financial HTIBUMBERROBAREBARTHDEE R
statements and to the presentation of some items within RERKZEINELE TEE - EJ535REEIN
these statements. It also gives rise to additional disclosures. W - ERERAEEEE 88 WAK
The measurement and recognition of the Group’s assets, B MERE N o SR — L LA BT LR RO E
liabilities, income and expenses is unchanged. However, SHEEREeRANEMIEKE B
some items that were recognised directly in equity are now HERF 1R EES AESE (L2 25 & 3|
recognised in other comprehensive income. HKAS 1 affects A— [ZEKER] - LEBFEEHZIE
the presentation of owner changes in equity and introduces BLIERTHEER|— B - AREE D RIFHAEE W
a ‘Statement of comprehensive income’. Comparatives have BMAOMESHBOREENTERR 2 25 REE

o MELBRBFNBERAZEN_TTN
A—BAZEGEERRRHBHRRE - Bt -
BEREHHE -

been restated to conform with the revised standard. The
Group has applied changes to its accounting policies on
presentation of financial statements and segment reporting p
retrospectively. However, the changes to the comparatives

have not affected the consolidated or company statements of

financial position at 1st January 2008 and accordingly these

statements are not presented.

A D

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a EHREIHERE 27 % (BTAR) RER—
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or an associate EAR - HEEHEEREE QR ZHA
The amendment requires the investor to recognise dividends ERIAIRTE » T kaRBE iR E A" 2
from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate in profit BRI BB R R WEEBE AN IBEERR
or loss irrespective the distributions are out of the investee’s BB AR - EEEHERESHE AR 2R
pre-acquisition or post-acquisition reserves. In prior years, B RUAFE  ARalREKERIFHEZ
the Company recognised dividends out of pre-acquisition [ ERER AW BB AR - HERZEHFEEsk
reserves as a recovery of its investment in the subsidiaries, B N R 2 B (BUREREKA) o R
jointly controlled entity or associates (i.e. a reduction of the REWEERE2REARNESEERBEA -

cost of investment). Only dividends out of post-acquisition
reserves were recognised as income in profit or loss.

Under the new accounting policy, if the dividend distribution RIBFZETBER - MEREDIRBE - HEH
is excessive, the investment would be tested for impairment BANREBIEEMEEREZ SFTEORET
according to the Company’s accounting policy on impairment S EDRIEL

of non-financial assets.

The new accounting policy has been applied prospectively as IR SRR B IR BB ERIE 275 2
required by these amendments to HKAS 27 and therefore no 1EZTHRE MIRRIER » FIL W EE S| LR
comparatives have been restated. Fo
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R e

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (coNTINUED)

PRANETR] RAEMEFT B R M B RS

%8I (5)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving disclosures about
financial instruments

The amendments require additional disclosures for financial
instruments which are measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position. These fair value measurements are
categorised into a three-level fair value hierachy, which
reflects the extent of observable market data used in making
the measurements. In addition, the maturity analysis for
derivative financial liabilities is disclosed separately and
should show remaining contractual maturities for those
derivatives where this information is essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The Group
has taken advantage of the transitional provisions in the
amendments and has not provided comparative information
in respect of the new requirements.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not affected the identified
and reportable operating segments for the Group. However,
reported segment information is now based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker. In the previous annual
financial statements, segments were identified by reference
to the dominant source and nature of the Group’s risks
and returns. Comparatives have been restated on a basis
consistent with the new standard.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected
to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Certain other new and amended HKFRSs have been
issued but are not expected to have a material impact of the
Group’s financial statements.

EBMBREERE 75 (BTE) BR
SRIBFEESE
BRIAZRKUAFERTBRRERAEN S B
TEEHFEINEE - RS AT EAESEAE=
BE&HATELEE  RBEABRSHNMS
HIRLMELFT ERRE - A - fTESRAER
WEIHB TS AD B E R EBERZEITE
TAZHBAREEA - EERYETHRESR
WG EEE - REEABETARNBEME
650 R ARBHNEIIRMELBRER o

BERUBHMEEESREE DT

RN EWMELNESH AT EAEEC R
RA2HEEDE - AME2HD HBEHIRE
ARBERREERSERTEHHA T BLER
RERHN - RARFENTBRE - D FH5
TI2REBRFRAKE 2 E K KB &R 1%
B o BT AR BN ERCD EHRZ
5l o

REERMBHRRE B - BT REEER]
ERUBREENEKAMERRER A%
B30 R B AT ERAN o

EETRHIMARM KSR RN LR B BRFAR
B EHERRANA BN G BR - B
HAKE ST BRARE 2H ] REETNE
B BREEMBERIZHRIT « BT HMH
A RARERT BB SR E RO B - ETER
NEHARBEUBREREEATE -

FRBEERERAT —LTAFFH 47



Notes to the Financial Statements
Y g N

For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED

2.

PRANETR] RAEMEFT BR M B RE

HKFRSs (CONTINUED) ER ()

HKFRS 3 Business combinations BERMBREEREINERSH

(Revised 2008) (ZZEBN\ELBT)

The standard is applicable in reporting periods beginning on ERERAR-_EZNF+A—HE B2 &FH

or after 1st July 2009 and will be applied prospectively. The
new standard still requires the use of the purchase method
(now renamed the acquisition method) but introduces
material changes to the recognition and measurement of
consideration transferred and the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities, and the measurement of non-controlling
interests (previously known as minority interest) in the
acquiree. The new standard is expected to have a significant
effect on business combinations occurring in reporting
periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1st January 2013 and addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The new standard reduces
the number of measurement categories of financial assets
and all financial assets will be measured at either amortised
cost or fair value based on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Fair value gains and
losses will be recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income except for those on certain equity investments which
will be presented in other comprehensive income. The
directors are currently assessing the possible impact of the
new standard on the Group’s results and financial position in
the first year of application.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements
(Revised 2008)

The revised standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st July 2009 and introduces changes
to the accounting requirements for the loss of control of
a subsidiary and for changes in the Group’s interest in
subsidiaries. Total comprehensive income must be attributed
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. The directors
do not expect the standard to have a material effect on the
Group’s financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (coNTINUED)

PRANETR] RAEMEFT B R M B RS

%8I (5)

Annual improvements 2009

The HKICPA has issued Improvements to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards 2009. Most of the
amendments become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2010. The Group expects the
amendment to HKAS 17 Leases to be relevant to the Group’s
accounting policies. Prior to the amendment, HKAS 17
generally required a lease of land to be classified as an
operating lease. The amendment requires a lease of land to
be classified as an operating or finance lease in accordance
with the general principles in HKAS 17. The Group will need
to reassess the classification of its unexpired leases of land at
1st January 2010 on the basis of information existing at the
inception of those leases in accordance with the transitional
provisions for the amendment. The amendment will apply
retrospectively except where the necessary information is
not available. In that situation, the leases will be assessed on
the date when the amendment is adopted. The directors are
currently assessing the possible impact of the amendment on
the Group’s results and financial position in the first year of
application.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.1 Basis of preparation
The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost convention except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair
values. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

ol

3.2

3.3

Basis of preparation (conTINUED)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgment
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see 3.3 below) made up to 31st
December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (coNTINUED)

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control)
is accounted for by applying the purchase method. This
involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities
of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless
of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their fair values, which are also
used as the bases for subsequent measurement in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the reporting date.
All dividends whether received out of the investee’s
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company’s profit or loss.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity
require the unanimous consent of the venturers.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.4 Joint ventures (CONTINUED) 3.4 BBENL¥EE
In the consolidated financial statements, interests REEFERRAN > REBLEMERS
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and A RKAER  HEERAEREA

subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly
controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed
for impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the determination of the Group’s share of the
jointly controlled entity’s profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled entity is carried at cost and adjusted for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
jointly controlled entity's net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Profit or loss for the period includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the jointly controlled entity for the year, including any
impairment loss on the investment in jointly controlled
entity recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of joint venture. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest in the joint venture is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

3.4 Joint ventures (conTINUED)

3.8

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the joint venture
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are reversed on equity accounting,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group’s perspective.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods
and rendering of services, net of rebates and discounts.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties is recognised
on the execution of a legal binding, unconditional and
irrevocable sales contracts. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of financial
position under deposits received.

Service income is recognised when services are
rendered, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service
provided as a proportion of the total services to be
provided.

3.4 AELEG@E

3.5

WERARSHAREDEREDENK
BRHMERAHBIEE BEMKA
BEAVFENEER  LEIASEE -
WK AR BB RRXNNEE - 3l
HEATAEN B ERAREETHRA
TANAARERBEFE  SMERER
ERRRAE -

AEERHEABMREZARZRER K
SEAARERABELCEZRERRE
i EARBEAARZENEREME
BEZARERBRENEDRREDRE - K%
B EREEERERR

Wi R

W BEEEEmMERRE 2 AFE
(FR A2 R H) o REREEF R 5E
MAREE K A AR] SE b 5T B A KX
AER) - WATIHERANT

HEMEREL ZWMAR BT BERLD
RO BEERAABREZHESLD
B AR o MUK AERR B HIRTRL & %
PR 2 12 & J 3 BN A AR ISR
= NREKIZESE -

REWARRBEREELEREZXH 2
A ER (REBIRHERG LS R AR
152 LLPBETTRE) T ARER

RYNERRERAT —FTAF45H 53



Notes to the Financial Statements
M RERMITE

For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.8

3.6

Revenue recognition (cONTINUED)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
straight-line method over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Bank interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The cost of the
business combination is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assume, and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination or investment. Accounting
for goodwill arising on acquisition of investments in joint
venture is set out in note 3.4.

Goodwill is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 3.10).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

8.7/

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future
use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
in the statements of financial position reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the reporting date.

Property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as
property, plant and equipment and stated at cost until
construction or development is complete, at which time
it is reclassified as investment property. Any changes
between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount are recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FEETEEREE @

3.8 Property, plant and equipment 3.8 Y% BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

W - BB KRBT IR RB R ANMER R
AHTERREERR - —HEEZK
AEREREEREZREEEERET
TR R 7 B VB RIg PREE £ 2 3%
FEAEARXA

WEDEFRYE BB RRXB2 MG
ATAFHAEREREERAS  RAEZ
FRMT :

Buildings 4% or over the remaining s 4% s TE 4D 2 TR ERER
terms of the leases of useful SfF AT
lives, whichever is shorter BEE
Leasehold Over the lease terms, if shorter, HEEE  IREEH5F
improvements or 5 years (ABRIEE BE)
Furniture, fixtures 3-5 years Rfh - KEBR 3-5%F
and office WAERE
equipment
Motor vehicles 5-10 years bai::! 5—104F

The assets’ depreciation method and estimated useful
lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the
financial year in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

3.9

3.10

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of
the land together with direct costs attributable to the
completion of the properties.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary, property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments,
interests in subsidiaries and joint ventures are subject
to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those CGUs that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the CGU, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost to sell, or value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures are set out below. Financial assets are
classified into financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at every reporting date. All financial
assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases of financial assets
are recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

3.11 SREE (@)

3.11 Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. At each reporting
date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial
assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
includes financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss and all derivatives other than
hedging instruments.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.11 £RMEE (@)

3.11 Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following
criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy
and information about the group of financial
assets is provided internally on that basis to the
key management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Fair value is determined by reference to active
market transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value gain or loss
does not include any dividend or interest earned on
these financial assets. Dividend and interest income is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies in
note 3.5 to these financial statements.

The Group has designated its unlisted equity-linked
notes at fair value through profit or loss in order to avoid
the need to recognise separately embedded derivatives
which were not closely related to the host debt contract.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

3.11 SREE (@)

3.11 Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Loan and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or loss
arising from a change in the fair value excluding any
dividend and interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses (see
the policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the reporting date. The change in fair value attributable
to translation differences that result from a change
in amortised cost of the asset is recognised in profit
or loss and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.11 Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets (conTinueD)

For available-for-sale investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at each reporting date
subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair
value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBERHEE@)

3.11 SREE (@)

3.11 Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (coNTINUED) EEIEEZRE ()
If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is MEERZEREGFE  BIREEET
measured and recognised as follows: LAGTE RHERIT -

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which
the reversal occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.11 Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (coNTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount
is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss as impairment loss. That amount
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and its fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals for investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale and stated at fair
value are not recognised in profit or loss. The
subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income. Impairment
losses in respect of debt securities are reversed
if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBERHEE@)

3.11 Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (coNTINUED)

(iii)

Financial assets carried at cost (coNTINUED)
Financial assets other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and trade
receivables that are stated at amortised cost,
impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses
for doubtful receivables are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
in respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-
sale equity security increases in the remainder of
an annual period, or in a subsequent period, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.12 SRS

3.12 Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency of the individual
entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in

equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

3.13 Leases
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
straight-line method over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line
method over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TESTHBERME @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3.13 Leases (CONTINUED) 3.13 #HE @)

(i)~ Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent up-front
payments to acquire long term interests in the
usage of land. These are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment, if
any. The up-front payments are amortised over
the lease period on a straight-line method and
amortisation is charged to profit or loss.

3.14 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBEREME @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
3.14 Accounting for income taxes (CONTINUED) 3.14 FISBi T EE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable EERBEEBEDRRAHBARREED
temporary differences arising on investments in EIREBEECZERVEREZHER
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the M fle) 7N £ B ] 458 1) B A 22 RE 2 HE 0] e
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary BFEEER] RE N2 P 1] R A 2RI I BIRR AN o

differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at BEFIBEITER - RFEBRNERERK
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the SR EE HHBAMNRKREBEER
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are HAREE LB ERE -

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are EERIBEEXBBZEH N BRE
recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive S EMEPEWEPER  WEREME
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that ARG EEEENRSEGTAZEES
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income B - AR R o

or directly to equity.

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents 3.15 BeRBELEE
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and RekBeFEBBERTLRTFHEEAS
in hand demand, deposits with banks and short term RITEFRREHHBEA=(E AT
highly liquid investments with original maturities of PERF IR AE MRS BEEEED
three months or less that are readily convertible into BT AZEHSRBERE - HAR
known amounts of cash and which are subject to BAEEZHRTEY  NAEKERESE
an insignificant risk of changes in value, less bank BEAPAR S RAE D -

overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

3.16 Share capital 3.16 A&
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is TR DB AR - RAIKE BITRG
determined using the nominal value of shares that have ZHEEETE -
been issued.
Any transaction costs associated with the issue of WNER BTN A B 2 E IR H AN B
shares are deducted from share premium to the extent X SEERBAZEERAN  (F %S
they are incremental costs directly attributable to the FRAS T B Vi (B AR HARR o

equity transaction.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.17

3.18

Share-based payment transactions

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the share options awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses/retained earnings.

Retirement benefit costs and short term employee
benefits

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

70 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

3.17

3.18

URHBX N ZR S
REBEZERN A RNES Z a1k
BERBHE A FEEEEER - AR
OB BERZEE - MatENR
RO AHRE  AHRETSER R
B (Bl B RGN RHER K ER)
B ZFHE

B X 2 R R - AN
BEPTA RO RE 2 BIER R
Fx - ABEBRERERIEERER
mEBHANEMBBGIEER - ARy
EHRBEZ BIRERE 2 &EGARE
BHREAMX - FHEREHEKAT
EERE BB ZBRE - @8NS
BEIRTAAZE - MEFRBETAY
BEZBRESRBERGEFTALA B
RERIERT AT - HRRITERZ BARE
8B PRBRAEMEF - TSR ERHER
2R

FEAAEETTERY - AT B IRE R AT
ERZFEABREARMNGE - EBR
RBOR WS E R B DARITRE - AT
BREFETER ZKASBARTE
B/ REBH -

BABANRAREHESER

BIKFERIEA
& TR E ZIRIKREHITYE B IUE ke

4
et -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R P ot

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBERHEE@)

3.18 BABEARAKEHREREEF (#)

3.18 Retirement benefit costs and short term employee

benefits (coNTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs (coNTINUED)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum
mandatory contribution as required by the MPF Scheme
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The employer’s contributions of the Group vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in other
jurisdictions are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the government
of the respective jurisdiction. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefit to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

Short term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.19 2RAE

3.19 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables
and derivative financial instruments. These are
included in line items in the statement of financial
position as other payables, deposits received and
accrued charges and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other payables

These are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derivative

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments,
are initially recognised at fair value on the date the
derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments are accounted for
as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value are taken directly to profit or loss
for the year.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 &% —

TPAFTAS+—HLERE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBERHEE@)

3.20 Segment reporting 3.20 S EHRE

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

Property investment

Property development and trading

Securities investment and securities trading

- Provision of financial services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires difference resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried out
at arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except that gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
gain on disposal of amounts due from joint ventures,
bank interest income, loan interest income, corporate
income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment, are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREE @)

3.20 Segment reporting (CONTINUED) 3.20 P ERE (&)

3.21

Segment assets consist primarily of investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, and mainly exclude certain prepaid
lease payments, available-for-sale financial assets,
operating cash and corporate assets, which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities,
derivative financial instruments and exclude tax
payables, deferred tax liabilities and corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Related parties
For the purposes of theses financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(ii)  the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) ~ the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or its parent or a close
family member of such an individual, or is
an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

3. FESHBEREME @)

3.21

3.22

Related parties (conTINUED)

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefit is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS JUDGEMENT

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimated fair value of investment properties
Investment properties of the Group are stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.7. The fair values of investment properties,
set out in note 14 to the financial statements, are
determined by an independent professional valuer,
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited
(“Savills”). Such valuations are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from the actual results. In
making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
reporting date. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions in the
market.

Provision for impairment of loans and receivables
The policy for the provision for impairment of
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the collateral
security and the past collection history of each
borrower. If the financial conditions of the borrowers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in impairment
of their ability to make repayments, additional
allowance may be required. If the financial conditions of
the borrowers of the Group, on whose account provision
for impairment has been made, were improved and
no impairment of their ability to make payments were
noted, reversal of provision for impairment may be
required.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. BREFHHERAE &)

AND JUDGEMENT (coNTINUED)

4.1 EXEFHEFRBR @)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (coNTINUED)

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date
by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may
lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment
trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in
assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number
of key estimates and assumptions about future events,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making these key
estimates and judgements, the directors take into
consideration assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the reporting date
and appropriate market and discount rates. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions entered into by the Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain in the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale
Management determines the net realisable value of
completed properties held for sale by using prevailing
market data such as most recent sale transactions and
market valuation reports available from independent
qualified professional surveyors. Such valuations are
made based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainties and might materially differ from the
actual result. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market condition
existing at the reporting date. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (coNTINUED)

4. BEXRETHEE R A E @)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (CoNTINUED) 4.1 BAREFEFRER &)

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is
required when determining whether a decline in fair
value has been significant and/or prolonged. In making
this judgement, historical data on market volatility as
well as price of the specific investment are taken into
account. The Group also takes into account other
factors, such as industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the issuer/investee.

5. REVENUE/TURNOVER

HUHHESMEE ZREBRZ G

RAHLESREENS - AFEEREE
KFEENKARERBEZ FEE
B REEATETHRETRER
SEERAE o RMEL UL HERR -
BRBBEAZBEBBREEREZE
RBEB S - AEBINE BEMEA
= PImTERBARRRBEBEERT
AN BERERNRZHBEER

5. WA EXEE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represented
rental income, property management fee income, sales of
properties and loan interest income. Revenue recognised
during the year is as follows:

Rental income MW A
Property management fee income LIES=SEE- PN
Sales of properties VI HE WA
Loan interest income ERHLEMA
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HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
39,712 23,418
10,306 10,093
20,897 315,856
5,841 3,102
76,756 352,469
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. TEEE

The executive directors have identified the Group’s four HITESRCOEAEE 2 WARBGLERTE BEE
services lines as operating segments. S o

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

HELED R EREHABDMLEEXREES
M ERBRTE TRz [F] —EEAEH

operating results.

2009
“EENF
Property Securities
development investment Provision
Property and and of financial
investment trading trading services Total
ES BERER
NERE ¥RLEE B5EE BHEBRR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fn TAT Tn Tin Tin
Revenue WA
From external customers REHIER 50,018 20,897 = 5,841 76,756
Inter-segrment revenue (note) S TIONG) - - - 44,099 44,099
Reportable segment revenue NE2FAHHA 50,018 20,897 = 49,940 120,855
Reportable segment profit TEHAHER 35,465 34,695 21,434 5,747 97,341
Depreciation il 476 - - - 476
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BERNHETE 138 - = = 138
Fair value gain on financial assets/ BATEIIAERR
(liabilies) a fai value through LEREE/(8
proft or loss &) ZATEMA = = 19,726 = 19,726
Interest income on financial assets BATEIIAERE L
at fair value through profitor loss SREELHEHA = = 1,026 = 1,026
Loss in fair value of investment properties ~ RENEATESHE 240 = = = 20
Write back of provision for properties FENZ/RERD
held for sale (included in cost of sales) (BREERERAR) - 31,864 = = 31,864
Reportable segment assets 2RI HEE 540,710 618,741 14,791 20529 1,194,771
Additions to non-curtent segmentassets  FEREAPAELEN 310,260 = = = 310,260
Reportable segment liablties N2RAHER 46973 2,421 = 876 50,270
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHEE (&
2008
“2IN\E
Property Securities
development investment Provision
Property and and of financial
investment trading trading Services Total
S EFRER
mERE ¥EREE BHEE SRR it
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$" 000 HKS" 000 HK$' 000
T T i ThL FhL
Revenue WA
From external custormers REHHEE 351 315,8% = 3102 352469
Inter-segment revenue (note) BOMRAGE) - - - 31,540 31,540
Reportable segment revenue EEX GEloN 33511 315,856 - 34,642 384,009
Reportable segment profit/(loss) I2RIPEA/(BB) 13926 84818 (19902) 7208 86,070
Depreciation nE 703 - - - 703
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BERENEETE 100 5 o o 100
Fair value loss on financial assets/(liabities) ~ ZAFEHAERE
atfair value through profit or loss LEHEE/(BER)
AT ERE - - 20,845 - 20,845
Interest income on financial assets BATEFIN SR
atfair value through profit or loss LEHAEZFIEMA - - 37 - 371
Loss on fair value of investment properties ~ RENEATFEEE 6,260 - = = 6,260
Allowance for properties held for FENEEE
sale (included in cost of sales) (REREHERAR) - 53,386 - - 53386
Interest income on financial RREN AT
assets at amortised cost SREEFIBIMA - - 27 415 692
Reportable segment assets I2HAHEE 249,100 486,509 67,263 13,000 815872
Additions to non-current segment assefs B HEEEN 37 110 - - 467
Reportable segment liabilities M2RAHER 44,290 19865 % 861 65,112
Note: Inter-segment revenue are charged at prevailing market interest = BBPIRATNRERZTSMNEGTE - AR

BOBHMBRARBRTFRENERERMERR
REBEZHBAR -

rates for the advance from the subsidiary in financial service
segment to the subsidiaries engaged in property investment as well
as property development and trading.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEPEE #E)

RAKELED MRS 2 S AABEE]R
R 2INNAEE T 2HEEIRAEROT ¢

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the financial statements as follows:

2009 2008

—EEhEF —TTN\FE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Reportable segment revenues A 23FRE D EBUA 120,855 384,009
Elimination of inter segment revenues K5 EFFTUA (44,099) (31,540)
Group revenues SEUWA 76,756 352,469
Reportable segment profit A 235 2B A 97,341 86,070
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA ke 3,525 2,497

Gain on disposal of amounts HERERE &R

due from joint ventures FIE 8,915 =
Bank interest income ERITHBULA 4,078 7,117
Loan interest income BF B A - 415
Unallocated corporate income AABLEFEWA 49 1,085
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBLERY (11,626) (10,350)
Profit before income tax B 7% A& A 102,282 86,834
Reportable segment assets Al 2RO EEE 1,194,771 815,872
Other financial assets HEtemEE 2,300 -
Prepaid lease payments FERAERE 14,790 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEE 325,970 439,762
Other corporate assets HEmbEE 2,521 1,687
Group assets SBEE 1,540,352 1,257,321
Reportable segment liabilities AIZ2HHMBEE 50,270 65,112
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 17,880 15,742
Other corporate liabilities Embxai 1,834 1,638
Tax payable EFIE 8,338 12,023
Group liabilities SEAa%E 78,322 94,515

AEBKRBEINEP ZWEAREFRBEE
REIDRBATHE :

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets are divided into the following geographical
areas:
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZZHhFE+—-F=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHEE @)
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
REHIIES EREBEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZTENF —ZETAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T FET FAT
Hong Kong (domicile) VYD) 30,153 325,144 321,049 3,984
Mainland China B A 3D 46,603 27,325 234,098 239,960
Total @t 76,756 352,469 555,147 243,944
The revenue information above is based on the location of the i ABRIAREH R AR -
customers.
The non-current asset information above is based on the FHERBEENEEM R (R TEEE/MT
location of the assets and excludes financial instruments. A)REX%E -
7. OTHER NET FINANCIAL INCOME/ 7. Hitg&mkes (BxX) FEE
(EXPENSE)
Other net financial income/(expense) recognised during the RAFEEERZ Ete s (FX) FEE
year is as follows: HEAT
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
Financial assets at fair value BEATEYIABER
through profit or loss: L EREE
— investment in equity - FERABARE
securities held for trading 18,890 (22,543)
— investment in compound — RN TR
financial instruments WIEEZ1EE
designated as such upon SR T AEKRE
initial recognition 380 1,311
— interest income - M8 A 1,026 371
20,296 (20,861)
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

OTHER NET FINANCIAL INCOME/ 7.

(EXPENSE) (coNTINUED)

Hit&mas (BI%) B8 ()

2009 2008
—EENF —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
Financial liabilities at fair value BN EYABZER
through profit or loss: ZeRArlE
— derivative financial instruments - PTESBT A 456 387
Interest income on financial LABESHRK AR AR 2 &b
assets at amortised cost: BEZFBWA
— bank interest income — SRITH BUA 4,078 7,117
— loan interest income - B BIA - 415
— debt securities interest income - BEBBHEIWA - 277
4,078 7,809
Total of other net financial Hih S EERE
income/(expense) (%) F8M@st 24,830 (12,665)
OTHER INCOME 8. Hutlz
Other income recognised during the year is as follows: FERNER 2 HMBBR AT :
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Dividend income B UA 682 884
Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries S A )z W - 353
Reversal of provision of amounts W& & {2 FRIE
due from joint ventures Z R - 143
Write off of other payables and accruals WeHE b EMNRERETER 325 40
Exchange gain e 5 W 13 4,568
1,020 5,988
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84

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. BRFTEHANGEFN

2009 2008
- -3 —ZREN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Profit before income tax has been BRSBTS FIE Bk
arrived at after charging/(crediting): /(GEA) AR &IE:
Employee benefit expense: EER/MFX
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) E=WS (FIFE13)
— fees likn 958 900
— salaries and allowances — e RER 2,407 2,407
— retirement benefit —RIERIFT IR
scheme contributions 24 24
3,389 3,331
Other staff HMET
— wages and salaries —TEk¥Fe 5,297 4,907
— retirement benefit —RIERIFT IR
scheme contributions 269 298
8,955 8,636
Auditors’ remuneration ZER & 600 720
Cost of properties held for BRRARLZ
sale recognised as expense FEMERE 16,485 176,999
Depreciation & 570 810
Loss on disposals of property, HEME « BE
plant and equipment PE S i 49 85
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BRNHEERE B 140 100
Minimum lease rentals in respect HEWMEZ
of rented premises =Jlivitkn 515 478
(Write back of provision)/Allowance (BEFEMERE)
for properties held for sale S FEMERE (31,864) 53,386
Write-off of other payables and accruals HAb BT R BT & A 2 s (325) (40)
Write-off of other receivables LA SRR IR 2 5 - 104
Rental income under operating leases, BEEEHEEZHEEWA -
less outgoings of HK$9,840,000 RS2 $5 9,840,000/ 7T
(2008: HK$8,259,000) (ZZTZ\F : 8,259,000/87T) (29,872) (15,159)

Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



Notes to the Financial Statements
I ECE S Ead N kEe

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FR1EHIBEX
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current tax REATRIR
— Hong Kong profits tax — BRAEH
Tax for the year AEFEHIE 928 16,407
Under/(Over)provision in prior year BEFELR(Z8) 731 (966)
— PRC enterprise income tax — B EMEH
Tax for the year AREFEEFTE 3,096 2,820
Overprovision in prior year BAFEZE (23) -
4,732 18,261
Deferred tax EFERIIR
Current year KEE 2,138 10
Attributable to reduction in tax rate AR R T - (2)
2,138 8
Total income tax expense FriSFif sk 4258 6,870 18,269
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% REEBEBNEHIDARKNEEZES S BE
(2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising 2t ERBRMNIZ1I65% (BT )N\ F:
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable 16.5% )5 & o AEBEEEM AEER 8 2
elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable rates of tax BANER  TIEEEMIRTTZEE  RERE
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, BIFTEA R RAE -
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (coNTINUED)

10. FriS®iBA > ()

11.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before income tax

Tax on profit before income tax,
calculated at the statutory rate
16.5% (2008: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates of
group companies operating
in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of unused tax
losses to recognise

Utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of temporary
difference not recognised

Effect on deferred tax as a result of a
decrease in tax rate during the year

Under/(Over)provision in prior years

Income tax expense

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

B P 1S B¢ Aa 7

BAEME 16.5%
“ETN\F : 165%)EZ
FRETIS B AR A 2 FIR
HEHEMRLAER
ek S VNG
HERTRAMER 8
TNRHBRA 2 RS
BARRBAZ REZE
BRRBAVEBRZREEE

BRBERERZHIAEE

AR ER 2 MG E

B F AR TR E 4 2 R
BB E

BEFED (%)

PSR

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

PS5 sz B A8 8 B R 5T L 2SR I 2 AR 40
™

2009 2008
—EENF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
102,282 86,834
16,877 14,328
426 229
6,136 3,567

(8,053) (2,353)
2,830 9,629

(11,407) (5,546)

(647) (617)

- )

708 (966)
6,870 18,269

11. XRBHEE ARLER

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$95,412,000 (2008: HK$68,565,000), a
profit of HK$4,955,000 (2008: a loss of HK$54,598,000) has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREZF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AAREREESSE ABGSRARREE
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is BRI TR T 8UERTHE -

based on the following data:

2009 2008
—EEhF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit attributable to equity VNN ZnE SN L fapedyi ey |
holders of the Company 95,412 68,565
Number of shares RHOEE '000 '000
* =
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FLERREARZFI 5 < L@
shares for the purpose of basic N9 & (i EE)
earnings per share (Note) 1,457,017 1,222,290
Weighted average number of ordinary  RETTIERARIEE B A
shares deemed to be issued at nil AERER TEIT 2 LB
consideration on the assumed g9
exercise of the warrants 55,821 -
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ St ERESEZE AN = 2 LRI
shares for the purposes of diluted Ik g ()
earnings per share (Note) 1,512,838 1,222,290
Note: Fff3E
For the year ended 31st December 2009, the above weighted average FEHECTTINF T A=+ —HILEFEZERER
number of ordinary shares for the calculation of basic earnings per share BAFTRA z LB INETF OB AR - AT KM
had been adjusted to taken into account of the issue of ordinary shares as 5 29(a) Fril 21 T AR o
detailed in note 29(a).
For the year ended 31st December 2009, the computation of diluted BHRTERRECSEARES S GTEHE-ZTN
earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the outstanding share F+Z A=+ B UEFEZERBEERFREZEER
options as the exercise of the share options was anti-dilutive. ERETTEE -
For the year ended 31st December 2008, the computation of diluted ARTERERERRBREE 2 ERREE - W EE

“EEN\F+ A=t BLFEZEREERIIR
%SRRI MR R TIE ©

earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the outstanding share

b6

options and warrants as the exercise of the share options and warrant was
anti-dilutive.
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEME R SREEEEHMH

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments BEME
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2008: six) ENSEMENES (ZZETNF : A~ &E
directors were as follows: W&
Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances and benefits
benefits in kind scheme
Fees HE - 2B BINER Total
Fok RENEA HE G am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET T T T
2009 —EThE
Executive directors HTES
Wong Chung Tak ThaE 100 1,807 12 1,919
Tse Kam Fai Eifiay 100 600 12 712
Independent non-executive directors  BYEHTES
Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart ZERB 200 - - 200
Chung Koon Yan (note a) EEA (fizta) 116 - - 116
Liu Sing Piu, Chris (note b) ERE (i3t D) 84 - - 84
Chong Kally HEA 200 - - 200
Non-executive directors FHTES
Liu Sing Piu, Chris (note b) ERREZ (Fistb) 58 - - 58
Wong Ngo, Derick B¢ 100 - - 100
958 2,407 24 3,389
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEMERSREEREHMN (&)
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances and benefits
benefits in kind scheme
Fees R SRR Total
kA REMER IR Lt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
2008 “ETN\F
Executive directors HITES
Wong Chung Tak TR 100 1,807 12 1,919
Tse Kam Fai il 100 600 12 712
Independent non-executive directors BV EHTES
Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart ZEE 200 = = 200
Liu Sing Piu, Chris BER 200 - - 200
Chong Kally HEH 200 = = 200
Non-executive director FUTES
Wong Ngo, Derick B¢ 100 - - 100
900 2,407 24 336
There were no arrangements under which a director waived or RAREER » WELA TR E (I EEhE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. =% B S WEL A S -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the RAEZR - ANEENE RS E L (T B
directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, % EAMANEE Y SRk B E -
or as compensation for loss of office.
Notes: PR
(a) Chung Koon Yan was appointed on 4th June 2009. (a) EERR T AENANBESE -
(b)  Liu Sing Piu, Chris has re-designated from independent non- (b)) PEER-ZTAENANBHBIIERTES
executive director to non-executive director of the Company on 4th FEARRDTIEHNITES -
June 2009.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZZhFE+—-F=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEMERSREERB TN (E)
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

Five highest paid individuals hEESHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in AEBRSHRMzZARBALTEFT  ME(=ZZ
the Group for the year included two (2008: two) directors TN\EF: MB)RARTIZES - HBMEEE
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented ERMR ESITHR o Efp=8 (2T )\F :
above. Emoluments payable to the remaining three (2008: =B) AERARFE Z3RENNT -

three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2009 2008
—ETAEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, BEXREM - FERER
other allowance and benefits HAbEE R EYREF
in kind 2,193 2,181
Contribution to retirement RNEFET B R
benefits schemes 75 75
2,268 2,256
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEZMEN T 58RI
Number of individuals
ABEEH
2009 2008
—EENEF ZZETNF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 1,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7 & 1,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
3 3
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES-GROUP 14. REYH* —F5KH

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are accounted for as
investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position are summarised as follows:

Carrying amounts at 1st January R—A—BZEHE
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34)  WEEHIE A a] (FizE34)
Net loss from fair value adjustments N EFRE 2 FEE

Carrying amounts at 31st December

Investment properties were valued at open market value by
reference to market prices for similar properties as at 31st
December 2008 and 2009 by independent and professional
qualified valuers, Savills, who is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
carrying amount are analysed as follows:

In Hong Kong held on: REBRA
Medium-term lease of BN 10FZE504F
between 10 to 50 years 2 R ERE A
Long-term lease more than 50 years &2 504 A+~ REFFRAY
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBUIMBERFE
Medium-term lease of BN 10FZE504F
between 10 to 50 years 2 R ERE A
Long-term lease more than 50 years #2504 A 7 R EFFAAY

Rt A=+—BZKmE

DS B TEE MR S AER AR EN
AREFENERESRAAFERER
NP UEE

FAMBHARARTEREZESHELT

2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
238,740 245,000
294,977 -
(240) (6,260)
533,477 238,740

BEMER_ZSTNFR=_TETNF+=A
=+ —HHBLREERBEGEME —KTFE
BHEIMZARTMESREUDEZ T EETH
B B-—ATRBEHTRESNEMES S
B - Wik HEE &R RPNI B EEUE 2
o

RNEEREREEZY 2 IREMERRD DTN
T

2009 2008
—BEhEF —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
31,000 =
269,300 -
300,300 =
230,000 238,740
3,177 -
533,477 238,740
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 15. 1% - BERZE —TEE

GROUP AND COMPANY )& NN
Group AEE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office equipment Motor
Buildings improvements & £ER vehicles Total
BF  HENEERE BAERE RE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
At 31st December 2007 RZBELE+ZA=1-H
Cost A - 3117 2277 2,601 7995
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (2,807) (2,127) (1,045) (5,979)
Net book amount REFE = 310 150 1,556 2,016

Year ended 31st December 2008 EHZE—TZT/N\F+-A=1—H

IHFERE

Opening net book amount FNEETE = 310 150 1,556 2016
Exchange differences ErES = 3 = 13 36
Additions NE - - 154 313 467
Disposals & - - (76) (129) (205)
Depreciation ik = (333) (113) (364) (810)
Closing net book amount FREOFE = = 115 1,389 1,504
At 315t December 2008 RZEZ\E+=A=1—H

Cost A - 3331 2,397 2,748 8476
Accumulated depreciation Z3HNE - (3,331) (2,282) (1,359) (6,972)
Net book amount FEFE = = 115 1,389 1,504

Year ended 31st December 2009 H#Z=EFhE+=F=1-H

LEE

Opening net book amount FORERE - - 115 1,389 1,504
Acquisition of a W —-HEHEAR

subsidiary (note 34) (PizE34) 830 - 380 - 1,260
Additions "E 653 180 57 573 1,463
Disposals e - - - (250) (250)
Depreciation ik (19) (5) (133) (413) (570)
Closing net book amount EXREFE 1,514 175 419 1,299 3,407

At 31st December 2009 R=EENF+-A=1-H

Cost KA 1533 3511 1,766 3,049 9,859
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (19 (3,336) (1,347) (1,750) (6,452)
Net book amount RHFE 1,514 175 419 1,299 3,407
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 15. Y% - BERZE —TEE

GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) RARRQT (E)
Company b /N
Furniture,

fixtures and
office equipment

B £BK  Motor vehicles Total
WRAERME b} okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET
At 31st December 2007 R_ZZtF+=-A=1+—H
Cost (%N 361 598 959
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (232) (255) (487)
Net book amount REFE 129 343 472
Year ended 31st December 2008 HE—ZTZEN\F+-_A=1+—H
HEE
Opening net book amount FHIREFE 129 343 472
Additions NE 11 - 11
Disposals (S (76) (129) (205)
Exchange difference M =58 = 14 14
Depreciation & (51) (48) (99)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 13 180 193
At 31st December 2008 RZEEN\FF+A=1—H
Cost %N 212 459 671
Accumulated depreciation ZEhE (199) (279) (478)
Net book amount HREFE 13 180 193
Year ended 31st December 2009 HZ—ZEZhFE+=-A=1+—H
HEE
Opening net book amount FHRREFE 13 180 193
Additions NE 18 - 18
Depreciation e (12) (41) (53)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 19 139 158
At 31st December 2009 R-ZZEAF+=-A=1+—H
Cost %N 212 459 671
Accumulated depreciation ZEihE (193) (320) (513)
Net book amount REFE 19 139 158
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - GROUP

16. AN HERE - FKH

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net carrying amounts are

analysed as follows:

Opening net carrying amount

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34)

Additions
Amortisation

Closing net carrying amount
In Hong Kong held on

Medium-term lease of between
10 to 50 years

Long-term lease more than 50 years

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current assets
Current assets

FHRREFE

Wi — Rk AR (HFE34)
NE

i

FRREFE

NEERE
BT 105 Z 50 F 2 L

BB0F A £z REAFEL

E2|MMAEZOFMT
FRBEE
mEBEE
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AEEREEL M BEEBENKEHEER
B EREFESTAT

2009 2008
—BBAE  TINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THR
3,800 3,900
13,420 =
1,410 =
(140) (100)
18,490 3,800
3,700 3,800
14,790 =
18,490 3,800
18,263 3,700
227 100
18,490 3,800
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/ 17. E’%Mﬂ‘%’&ﬂi@é/@ﬂ&&/ﬁi
AMOUNTS DUE FROM AND/OR TO FERHEB AT ZRIE—ARAT
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

2009 2008
—EENEF ZZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - HRAAS 15,009 15,009
Less: Provision for impairment losses * & : JB{EE1E 2 % * (2,011) (2,011)
12,998 12,998
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NG e 1,824,417 1,451,894
Less: Impairment losses recognised B BRI AEEE (694,610) (697,610)
1,129,807 754,284
Amounts due to subsidiaries B AR Z 508 104,372 115,374
e In 2008, an impairment was recognised for unlisted shares, at * R-ZZT)N\F AR —RHNBARIEEILEEE
cost, of HK$2,011,000 because one of the subsidiaries had been [l b 32 5k 2K 2,011,000 7% 7T 4 3F £ 7T B9 R 52 R
inactive. & -
Movement for impairment provision of amounts due from FEUPT A RIFRIE 2 BB 2 2 & E) -
subsidiaries:
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Balance as at 1st January R—A—Bz#&E& 697,610 787,601
Impairment loss recognised EERBEEE - 34,100
Write-off on deregistration/ i HEHTEB A B2
disposals of subsidiaries (3,000) (124,091)
Balance as at 31st December R+—A=+—HBz&% 694,610 697,610
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free BB AR BB AR TVERR  RERIZE
and repayable on demand. SKEFEE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December RZBEZNF+ZA=1T—RAZEZEMNB AR
2009 are detailed in note 39. AR EH KT RES9 o
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+-_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES -

GROUP

18. REELX  EE - A KE

In March 2004, the Group entered into a loan agreement with
RiZaiMs B EZEER AR (“Jingke Information”), a joint
venture of the Group, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
provide a non-revolving secured loan of up to RMB15,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$14,151,000) to Jingke
Information. The loan carried interest at HSBC prime rate.
The effective interest rate in 2006 ranged between 7.75%
and 8% per annum. The loan was secured by each of the
other shareholders of Jingke Information by charging their
respective equity interests in Jingke Information to the Group.
The loan principal and the related interest were expired on
31st December 2005. In addition, Jingke Information also
owed to the Group an amount of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$7,547,000). Allowance for the whole
amount was made in 2006.

During the year ended 31st December 2009, investments in
joint ventures, on which had been fully impaired in prior years,
were all disposed along with the disposal of a subsidiary as
detailed in note 35(a)(ii). In addition, the aforesaid loans were
disposed to independent third parties at a total consideration
of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$9,091,000).
Accordingly, recovery of the full impairment arising from
the amounts due from joint ventures of HK$8,915,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.

Amounts due from joint ventures B A EHENRIE
Less: Provision for impairment

losses recognised
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B BRERBERR R

REZTNE=A AEESRASEZAED
ERERMEEEXERAR([REHEEDET
N —ERHE - Bt ARERER&EHME
ER#H%Z A AR 15,000,000 (FHERL
14,151,000 70 ) Z 3EBIREIFE K - BEFMN
BAELRITRERFNERGTE RZZTTRF
ZEBEENENF7IIEE8E LM - ZEX
HREHE BSRFHES BN &EHE B 2 EmK
B AREEERE - ERASREBFEER
—EERFE+_A=+—HER I BFE
= B RARE B AR 8,000,000 7T (FHER
#97,547,000%87C) 25838 c RZZETRNFEE
AR R IE R 2 o

REBE-_ZTHNE+-_A=+—HILFE  »®
REGEZRE(ERBEFERIRNE)BE
& — B AR (FERME35)() BEE
BHE - i EMEREHETFBILE=S
75 AR E A AR 8,000,000 7T (48 E R4
9,091,000 7T) ° Eit - WEIREKRE B E
A 7 2 ERE 8,915,000 7T B M 18 25 R g

5
27
o ©

2009 2008
—BFhF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

- 21,293

- (21,293)
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES - 18. REE¥EZER — KB (&)
GROUP (coNTINUED)
Movement for impairment provision of amounts due from joint EUREBERERIE 2 BEER . &F)
ventures:
2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance as at 1st January R—RA—Bz&&# 21,293 21,436
Reversal of provision upon disposals  Hi & B a1 45 (21,293) -
Amount recovered during the year F UK EIFRIE - (143)
Balance as at 31st December Nt A=1+—R & - 21,293
As at 31st December 2008, the balances with joint ventures R-ZEZENF+_A=1+—8 HEELEE
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B EeR T - B RIZEREFER ©
The financial information of the Group’s joint ventures for AREBESGBEALPENREBEE_ZESENFE+ A
the year ended 31st December 2008 was summarised. The =+ —HALEFEZVBERELEHE - BRZ
corresponding information for year ended 31st December BETEDEHEANZSAEREZRED
2009 is not presented as the joint ventures had been disposed RBAFERYERE WEE-_TETLF+=
of and investment in these joint ventures had been fully A=+—RBILEEZHEEERITEZT] -

impaired in the previous years.

2008

—=ENF

HK$'000

FAT

Non-current assets IERBEE 13,636
Current assets mEBEE 7,376
21,012
Current liabilities mBEE (22,450)
(22,450)
Net liabilities BEFRE (1,438)
Income WA 13,751
Expenses =53 (14,937)
Loss for the year FEEE (1,186)

Group’s share of results REEDHEECEFEEE
of joint ventures for the year -
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+-_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES - 18. AEELE s —A&EH (&)
GROUP (coNTINUED)
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31st December AEBAGECENR_TENF+_A=1+—H
2008 were as follows: ZEFIEIT
Percentage of
BAk
Place of
Form of establishment Ownership Voting Profit

Company name business structure and operations interest power  sharing  Principal activities
ARER BELBES BIREERE FEEEE REERE BIUIH FEBEHR
Jingke Information Incorporate PRC 51 40 51  Manufacture and sale

of electronic components
BEHER ARz HE 51 40 51 BBEREEEFH
Wuhan Jingke Electronic Co., Ltd.  Incorporate PRC 51 40 51 Inthe process of liquidation
RERNETFERAR ez HE 51 40 51 RERT
As at 31st December 2008, the Group’s joint ventures were R-ZEZENF+_A=+—H x&EEZEE
indirectly held by the Company. The Group’s interests in the PEBHAQRBERES - AEERESETEY
joint ventures were not accounted for as subsidiaries because HERAIENB AR RERAEBEHZEE
the Group’s controls over these entities were restricted by oI EELENSEE TIEXRE - ==
certain provisions in the joint venture agreements. In the RE AEBEARBETAEHEELEZES
opinion of the directors, the Group did not have unilateral @ BrEEMmRRAEREHZETE - [/
control of the boards of directors but could jointly control, I AREERZERECEZ ERE ST ED
with the other shareholders, over these entities. Accordingly, EETE o

equity method of accounting was used to account for the
Group’s interests in these joint ventures.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

19.

GOODWILL - GROUP

19. B - AXKH

20.

At 1st January »n—A—H

Gross carrying amount ARMEBRE

Accumulated impairment 2FHRE

Net carrying amount 1st January R—RA—BZEREFE

Net carrying amount at 1st January R—A—BZEEFEE
Acquisition of a subsidiary L B8 — FEI BT BB A A
Impairment losses REEE

Net carrying amount at 31st December RA+=A=+—HZ KA F5E - -

At 31st December R+=—A=+—H
Gross carrying amount ARMEBRE
Accumulated impairment 2FHRE

Net carrying amount BRTEVFEE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS - GROUP

2009 2008
—EENEF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TR
11,297 11,297
(11,297) (11,297)
11,297 11,297
(11,297) (11,297)

20. WHEESHEE - K EE

Available-for-sale financial assets are all unlisted equity
investments and are stated at cost less provision for
impairment as they do not have quoted market prices in
an active market. The directors are of the opinion that
the carrying amounts of the unlisted equity investments
approximate their fair value.

AHHESREERDAFLMRARE - A
REERERM ST W EMISRE - BURKAR
BEREREERIIR - EFRR - FFLTEA
REZREERRE 2 AFEBS
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+-_A=1+—HILFE

21. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE - GROUP

21. FEVE —FEE

Cost B AR
Less: Allowance of o EETE
properties held for sale B

In Hong Kong, held on
long-term lease

In the PRC, held on
long-term lease (note 40)

Notes

(a)

(b)

fINEE - BEH
GRS
RIRARE - ZERH

As at 31st December 2009, allowance of HK$31,864,000 was
reversed as the directors considered that this was not required in
view of the market value in 2009 which is higher than the original
cost. The reversal of HK$31,864,000 was credited to cost of sales
and services during the year. As at 31st December 2008, allowance
of HK$53,386,000 to bring the properties held for sale to net
realisable value had been made against the cost of the properties
with reference to the open market value.

In March 2008, a sale and purchase agreement was entered into
between the Group and an independent third party to acquire a
property located at 6th Floor in Wings Buildings in Hong Kong
at a total consideration of HK$21,000,000. This transaction was
completed in April 2008.

In April 2008, sale and purchase agreements were entered into
between the Group and independent third parties to acquire
several premises located in On Fung Building, Hong Kong at a
total consideration of HK$150,000,000. These transactions were
completed in May 2008.
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HBRF A (£ 40)

2009 2008

—ENE  —TI)\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bk Fi#R Fibt
634,175 539,886
(a) (21,522) (53,386)
612,653 486,500

(b) 313,991 181,500
298,662 305,000

612,653 486,500

B

(a) RZZEEAF+=A=+—H 31,864,000/

(b)

ZEBERE - TERESERE ER-TTN
FEMERRREKRAE - BEALIEERE - B0
231,864,000 BT B 5T ARFE 2 $HE RARIEK
ReRZTFENE+ZA=1+—8  BHEEDE
A5 7 ] B3R JFE 2 %45 53,386,000 B ITE L E R
PTG RS A EL ©

RZBZEN\EF=R AEEE—EZBIE=Hz]
S BEE W 0 I ARK(E 21,000,000 7T

WREAREEKERERENEZ —BME © %
RGER-ZZN\FEATK °

RZTZN\FNA  AEBEE-—FBIE=75]
B B - # I LA A8 A B 150,000,000 7 7T i
BUNBBERERNEETEN - ZZRFHER
—ETN\FRARK °
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

21. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE - GROUP 21. &YX —K&EE (&)
(CONTINUED)

In May 2008, a sale and purchase agreement was entered into RZZTZEN\GFHA  AEEE—EBIE=F3]
between the Group and an independent third party to acquire a T —EE W - BRI AR R (B 45,000,000 % 7T
property located at 21/F World Wide House at a total consideration WA RNIRIRAE 21 2 — B - ZRZFER
of HK$45,000,000. This transaction was completed in July 2008. T N\FLATEK

On 12th February 2009, a sale and purchase agreement was RZZTZNF-_A+=R AEERE-FZBHIFE
entered into between the Group and an independent third party =AM B E W - B AR (E 106,133,000
to acquire a property located at 30/F United Centre, Queensway, TREBVRESSEBR —F0L30E2—EY
Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$106,133,000. This transaction ¥ ZRHERZTETNF=A=1+—H%EK °

was completed on 31st March 2009.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22, EWBRF I H b FEULFRIE ~ FELS
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS - HERERE - AEBENAAT
GROUP AND COMPANY
A defined credit policy is maintained within the Group. The NEFNRNILRZEREZEERE - —B{=ZEH
general credit terms range from one to three months. Each B—Z={A  BNRPHERSZEREE -
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks INEE E B A RRAR RS RIS E Z FEUNFIE - AR
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables EREEEERR SMREEEFHEMAH
to minimise its credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly 4EER o

reviewed by senior management.

Group Company
rEH RAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF —EEN\F —EENEF —ETNFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET FET AT
Trade receivables FEHBR K 3,333 1,658 - =
Other receivables, E e GRIE
prepayments SEANE/ O
and deposits Rize 8,437 7,094 3,291 1,181
11,770 8,752 3,291 1,181
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+-_A=1+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS -
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

22. BWRS R H A EWFRIE AN

2§&E$—¢$E&¢ﬂﬂ

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
trade and other receivables are not materially different from
their carrying amount because these amounts have short
maturity periods on their inception.

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the
reporting date, based on due date is as follows:

KRBT ARRE
BHA0ZE30H

Neither past due nor impaired
0 — 30 days past due

Trade receivables and other receivables that were neither past
due nor impaired relate to debtors for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a debtor that had a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group did
not hold any collateral in respect of trade receivables that are
past due but not impaired.
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ARREERS - YRR R E AL KRR Z
AFEEEFEMSBI TNFEEAEZR - RE
ERELEARLAEAGREHAR -

RikER - AEERKRFIZEIR B ATE 2 iR
BT

2009 2008
—BBAE  TINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THR
1,862 1,658
1,471 =
3,333 1,658

BRAR 380 HA IR AR (B2 8 AR K I A W R IR
Z BN EAN SRR AR 8% ©

EABERREZ BUERRZ ERAEANEE
BARIFEALE - REBELR  TEER
7 BRNERERYEHIREREE) B ERD
AEREKRE - WBARLEERFTRRESE
o ARBEYERZFLARERBELEK
BRAFFA AR -
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22. EWBRF R H A EEURFRIE ~ TR
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS - RERZEE - AEERAAQT
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date, RER - BUERFUREEREZBBMEZ
based on invoice date, net of allowances, is as follows: BRERDATLNT

2009 2008

—EEAF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Within 30 days 30BHA 2,090 609

31 to 90 days 31&90H 1,243 1,049

3,333 1,658

At each reporting date, all trade and other receivables have REERE B - B8 YRR TR K E b e U a8

been reviewed for evidence of impairment on both individual IR ER R ERIEERR - ERER AR

and collective basis. There was no movement in impairment BREE REE_ZTNEN_ZTZT)\F+=

losses in respect of trade receivables during the years ended A=+—BLFER  EHEKEKRRZHRES

31st December 2009 and 2008. B mEE -

23. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - GROUP 23. ERREWFIE - AKEE

2009 2008

—EEAF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

—secured * — B 14,150 13,000

— unsecured — EAK IR 6,250 =
Total of loans and receivables B R EW G IEARE 20,400 13,000

* REZZEAF+_A=+—H ERREKKE

Loans and receivables as at 31st December 2009 are secured by

the followings: PAT PR H
a) personal guarantees executed by several independent third parties; a) LEBUYE=AFEZMBAER
or
b) a security deposit paid for the purpose of securing the tenancy b) EREAEET VSRR ZREME M 2R
agreement entered with the Group for an aggregate amount of 75 4858 30,000,000 78 7T ©
HK$30,000,000.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZZhFE+—-F=+—HILFE

23. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - GROUP 23. ERREWFIE - XREE (F)
(CONTINUED)
The balances as at 31st December 2008 were secured by the followings: REZZENF+ZA=1+—8  ZE5HEHBUUTIIER
o
a) 10,500,000 shares of a company listed in Australia; or a) — RN _ETHA R Z 10,500,000 B&A% 15 ; 8%
b) a security deposit paid for the purpose of securing the tenancy b) EREAEETT VSRR ZREME XM 2R
agreement entered with the Group for an aggregate amount of 75 4858 30,000,000 7T ©
HK$30,000,000.
There were no impairment losses in respect of loans and REBEE-ZETNEFER_ZTEN\F+_A=+—
receivables during the years ended 31st December 2009 and HIEFER  WEEEERREKRTE BB
2008. &1 -
All loans and receivables were not past due as at 31st R-BEZNFE+_A=1+—"HER-_ZEZNF
December 2009 and 31st December 2008. Loans and T+ A=+ —BFBERREKRZEL RS
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to B o RMHAMMAKRBECER REKREZ &
a number of borrowers for whom there was no recent history NS SR 2 Ty
of default.
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24, MAFEIAERZR2EME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP E—-AREERERADT
AND COMPANY
Group Company
REE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhF —EENF —EEAF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FAT
Listed equity securities &S L ZIEA
in Hong Kong, at B EME
market value (note a)  (Ffizka) 11,885 27,855 11,885 27,855
Listed equity securities AR E_E Z f& A
in the PRC, at market ~ #&% + I&EM{&E
value (note a) (Ktzxa) - 10,251 - =
Unlisted equity-linked =R ANEMAZRIE -
notes (note b) A (ffEb) - 27,157 - 27,157
11,885 65,263 11,885 55,012

104 Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



Notes to the Financial Statements

TSR M ot

For the year ended 31st December 2009 &%= —

ENE+ZA=+—BILEFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP

24. EBAVEIA BRI EHME
E-AEERAQFE (F)

AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes: itz -

(a)  The amounts represent the investments in Hong Kong and the PRC (@) ZEFEIREBRFPBEETRAZFLFZERE -
listed equity securities which are held for trading. Fair values for ZEBHFDFBEEEAR - % SREZAFE
these investments have been measured as described in note 37. BEIRMIEE 37 Fritt 2z AR ET= o

(b)  These unlisted equity-linked notes were designated as financial (b)  ZFIELETRAHBEBRNVIRERREIEE A

assets at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
as they contained embedded derivatives which were not closely
related to the host contract, and HKAS 39 permitted the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These financial instruments were subject to financial risk
exposure in term of price risk and interest rate risk.

As at 31st December 2008, the major terms of the equity-linked

BRAFEIANESRZ EREE - HNRERE
NERFANTERTIEERZBRARTETA -
BEBGHENE 0 RATHBESHAKET
RERATEIIABRERRE - 2SR TANERE
R RFERERTNEAEESRER o

REZZENF+_A=+—H  BHERAHHE

notes were as follows: B2 EZERAT
Contracted notional
principal amount Maturity date Underlying stock
BRTNBRELEHE FHA BERH

A HK$5,000,000 23rd January 2009 China Life Insurance Co. Limited
5,000,000 #7T —ETNF—HA=1+=H TEASRBRERNHERAHE

B HK$5,000,000 23rd January 2009 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
5,000,000 # 7T —ETNF-RB=+=H B T ERTT

© HK$5,000,000 Sth January 2009 A50 China Tracker
5,000,000 # 7T —ZETNF—ANR ASO Bl E @

D HK$5,000,000 4th February 2009 A50 China Tracker
5,000,000 # 7T —ZETAF-AMA ASO Bl E &

E US$1,000,000 26th January 2009 Goldman Sachs Group Inc
1,000,000 7T —ETNFE—A=+/H Goldman Sachs Group Inc
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP
AND COMPANY (cONTINUED)

24. EBAVEIA BRI EHME

E-AKEERALQT (A)

Fair values of these equity-linked notes had been determined by
a firm of professional valuers, Asset Appraisal, by using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model. The significant inputs into the model
were as follows:

Share price Volatility Deposit rate
RE RiE TFRFIR

A HK$23.55 63.1% 0.3%
23.55#7T

B HK$4.08 68.75% 0.3%
4.08 87T

© HK$8.36 41.226% 0.3%
83687

D HK$8.36 59.96% 0.3%
83687

E US$84.39 97.79% -
84.39% 7T

The assumptions were supported by the prices from observable
market transactions and determined based on available observable

market data.

Fair value gain of HK$19,270,000 (2008: loss of
HK$21,232,000) has been recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31st December 2009.

These financial assets are presented within the section on

operating activities as a part of changes in working capital in
the statement of cash flow.
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ZE R AN R IR o (R E R A E R E R R
A Black-Scholes EitE e BIAE E A FE © ZEE

EEERHABBAT
Fair value as at
31st December 2008
R=-BBNF
Risk-free rate +=—A=+-—-8
EEBRFIE ZAVE
0.05% HK$4,997,000
4,997,000 47T
0.02% HK$4,999,000
4,999,000 47T
0.04% HK$4,994,000
4,994,000 47T
0.02% HK$4,852,000
4,852,000487T
0.08% US$938,000
938,000 7T

ZEBRRDAABENSERH BRI UR
IRAES 2 TBETS YR TIAEE

REBEE_ZTNAE+_A=+—RHILFENE
HERHER 2 A FEWZEA19,270,00058 7T (—
T )\4F : {518 21,232,000787T) °

ZETREENERKEEY 2/ N\HH 27
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 25. RERREEE - FEBRELQ
G

GROUP AND COMPANY )
Group Company
rEE NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBhE —ZEENF —ETAF —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHxT FH&T
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS 48,198 51,712 32,035 446
Short-term bank deposits FEEIRITER 277,772 240,323 73,227 239,436
Highly liquid fund mREEEE - 147,727 - =
325,970 439,762 105,262 239,882

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group
and the Company, short-term bank deposits with originally
maturity of three months or less, and highly liquid financial
assets with originally maturity of 21 days, and carry interests
ranging from 0.16% to 1.54% (2008: 0.24% to 4.47%)
per annum. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is
HK$221,325,000 (2008: HK$52,209,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"’) placed with the
banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through the
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RERRESEEREAEERARAMIFR
& BER=EAANEEZ BBHRITERRERER
21 HAEIEiz RS REE « FHEAT
0.16[2E|154E(ZZFFNF : 0.24[EE4.47
E) - BekBeEEREEREAFER
g o

AEERELRASFEETREFRTESH
RITAARYE E B2 RITAEHR 221,325,0008
TL(ZZEZTNF : 52,209,000/%7T) - ARKET
A AA B EMER  ERE [PREINEE
BRE] RIGE EERNETERE] K
SEREFEBREAN N EINERB 2 RITH
ARBE L SEAMER

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. TTESRMIE-AKEERADQT
— GROUP AND COMPANY
Group Company
KEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF T N\F —EEhEF —TEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT FET FAT
Derivative financial instruments #$74 €& T &
— Currency option contracts, — B
at fair value YO
/N - 96 - 96
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. fT4 @ T A - AEE R AKX H

— GROUP AND COMPANY (coNTINUED) (4&)
As at 31st December 2008, the major terms of the currency RZBZENF+-_A=+—0 E¥HELY
options contracts were as follows: ZEBEFOT
Contracted Option
notional premium
principal amount
amount received Underlying currency Maturity date Strike price
BIIARBRERELE B RESE BHEY 2R R ER
A HK$5,000,000 HK$131,000 British Sterlings (“GBP”) 21st January 2009 HK$11.3 to GBP1
5,000,000 7T 131,000%7¢ HigE —EENF-A=+—~ 1.3, 1 548
B HK$5,000,000 HK$154,000 Australian Dollars (“AUD") 21st January 2009 HK$4.75 to AUD1
5,000,000 7T 154,0007%7¢ SR —EENF-A=+—~ 4758, 18T
Fair values of the currency option contracts had been BAESABEEGER - BENERRE -
determined by a firm of professional valuers, Asset Appraisal, ¥R Black-Scholes HiE e (BAEE A TE © %
by using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The EEEEZMABIRAOT ¢
significant inputs into the model were as follows:
Fair value as at
31st December 2008
R=ZENEF
Spot rate Volatility Risk-free rate +=A=+—8
BEER R 12 [ B Fll R ZAFE
A HK$11.32 to GBP 1 21.54% 2.206% HK$1,000
11,3287, 1 5% 1,000347T
B HK$5.45 to AUD 1 23.52% 4.56% HK$95,000
5.458 T 1)RT 95,0007
The assumptions were supported by the prices from ZEBRIANBRMSER S BRI I
observable market transactions and determined based on RIRA RS 2 Al B mISEHE T AEE -
available observable market data.
Changes in fair value of the currency options contract EHHRE S # A T{E 2 # 8) 456,000 7% 7T Jh AT
amounting to HK$456,000 were charged to profit or loss AREEBRRE(ZTTN\SF : 387,00087T) ©
during the year (2008: HK$387,000).
27. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS 27. EMENSRE - e WiRE R ER
RECEIVED AND ACCRUED CHARGES - EA-X5H
GROUP
As at 31st December 2009, the balance included the security R-ZZEZNF+_A=+—H' ' B85EEHK
deposit received of HK$30,000,000 (2008: HK$30,000,000) K 342 & N2 30,000,000 L ( ZF T )\ F -
for the purpose of securing the tenancy agreement entered 30,000,000/ 70) Z &#4 Jh R B EE AR E E 7T 7
with the Group and as a pledge for loan and receivables of Z T E e 2 R R B o 23 Pt 2 B SRR
HK$10,000,000 (2008: HK$10,000,000) in note 23. fh N & Uk FX I8 10,000,00058 7T ( — 2 Z N\ 4F :

10,000,000/ 7¢) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP/ 28. EEHREBEEE - AKE EAH

COMPANY
The major components of the deferred tax liabilities MEBARERCEERBABZEEEHE kA
recognised by subsidiaries and movements thereon during FEZEFBEHNMT

the year are as follows:

Group AEE
Accelerated
tax Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
INEBIFTE BfhYE FEk]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FEx

At 1st January 2008 RZZEZEN\F—H—H (44) (15,331) (15,375)
Deferred taxation arising from BRIt R (K BT EE AR IR AT

decrease in tax rate credited  FEIEFF AIEZEER

to profit or loss 2 - 2
Charged to profit or loss B Bm IR0k (10) = (10)
Exchange realignment bE AR - (359) (359)
At 31st December 2008 and ~ R —ZTZT/)\F

1st January 2009 +=—A=+—HkK

—ETNF—HA—H (562) (15,690) (15,742)
Charged to profit or loss B Bm IR0k (735) (1,403) (2,138)
At 31st December 2009 R-ZENE
+=A=+—AH (787) (17,093) (17,880)

At the reporting date, the Group has unused tax losses of RREH - AEBE B RS AR AREHEER G
HK$339,036,000 (2008: HK$386,387,000) available for F) 2 F T8 518 339,036,000 78 7T ( — 2 Z )\ 4F -
offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset has not been 386,387,00078 7T ) ° F A K 2K im A7 = E A
recognised for these tax losses due to the unpredictability of TER - LI R 2 S R E S IR AR IR B 18
future profit streams. As at 31st December 2009, the Group BE MN-ZEZNF+_A=+—8 K&H
did not have any significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities WESBAREBRECHBEBE(ZESN\F
(2008: Nil). ) o
Company I/
At the reporting date, the Company did not have any RIFER  ARARWEE(ERRBEHRELER
significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2008: Nil). BEE(ZEENE: &) o

FRBFERERAT —L2A5FH 109



Notes to the Financial Statements
M RERMITE

For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZZHhFE+-F=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND 29. BAR—AEKEBERAAT
COMPANY
The share capital of the Company consists only of ordinary KAz BRAMEBF LB - ARG
shares. All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and AR B R EEAR A o

the repayment of capital.

2009 2008
—ZEThE ZEENF
Number Number
Notes of shares of shares
k=3 RAEE Rt &1 B
'000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
¥ FHET T FHTT
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares SREEO.2E T
of HK$0.2 each 2T 3,000,000 600,000 3,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid BEEITREE
At 1st January n—H—H 1,216,606 243,321 1,239,722 247,944
Shares issued upon WiE—fM B A A
acquisition of a subsidiary 317 2 IR tD (a) 650,000 130,000 - -
Shares repurchased RS &S Pl g
and cancelled (b) - - (23,116) (4,623)
At 31st December W+=—A=+—8 1,866,606 373,321 1,216,606 243,321
Notes: Ffd=E
(a)  On 19th August 2009, the issued share capital was increased by (@) RZZTZAFNA+TNLE  BBITRAEHBUNG
the issue of 650,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each at the %0.3137 % T 2 (& #% 377 650,000,000 A% & f%
price of HK$0.3137 per share. The issuance of new shares is used B0.28 T2 B MBS IE M o BATHRD T3
as the consideration for acquiring 100% equity interest and the YEUR BB 1) FH 2 100% A8 R B SR A e 2 B3R 2
shareholder’s loan in Yue Tin as detailed in note 34. RE (FBERMFE34) »
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

29. RA —AEBERA AT (5)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Shares repurchased and cancelled

In 2008, the Company repurchased a total of 23,116,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company at an
aggregate price of approximately HK$10,080,000. The highest
price paid and the lowest price paid was HK$0.34 per share to
HK$0.465 per share respectively. The repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The
premium payable on repurchase was charged against the share
premium account. An amount equivalent to the nominal value
of the shares cancelled was transferred from share capital to the
capital redemption reserve.

Issuance of unlisted warrants

(i) In October 2007, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Quam Securities Company Limited
(“Quam”) such that Quam procured for placees to
subscribe for up to 240,000,000 unlisted warrants at
HK$0.015 per warrant. The unlisted warrants confered
the rights to subscribe for new shares of the Company at
HK$0.42 per share for a period of 24 months from the
date of issue of the warrants and at HK$0.45 per share for
a period from the first day of 25th month after the date of
issue of the warrants up to the expiry of the 36th month
from the date of issue of warrants. Each of the subscription
prices was subject to adjustments. Each warrant carried the
right to subscribe for one new share of the Company.

Pursuant to the offer letters and the acceptance letters
executed on 15th April 2009, all above 240,000,000
warrants held by the four warrant holders were sold to
the Company at a consideration of HK$450,000 in cash
per offer or an aggregate of HK$1,800,000 in cash. All
outstanding warrants were purchased and cancelled
accordingly. The balance of HK$1,712,000 arising from
the repurchase of the warrants was credited to retained
earnings for the year ended 31st December 2009.

it - ()

(b)  EBEREEHZ MBS

RZZTN\F - KNATRIAS 410,080,000 7T
2 BREREEA 23,116,000 % + AARIRAFF
IREEO.2B T BAR © FTi 2 &k & (EE S
R R EIR0.34E TTEFAR0.465/E T - BEIKRHE
FHH - MAR RS BATRARIE UL B2 S D
ZEE - BEEMEENROEERTHR - £
FEENEHERONEEYE B RAEHEERA
A o

(c)  BATIE EMRRRIEE

0) R-ZZETHE+ A ARRHEFEH
BRAB(ESE )N —HRESHE
Bt EEREARA - R0 RREE
0.0157# 705 % Al 388 240,000,00015 FF £
MRIRIEE - ZBIF E RN R
BEER - MEBRTRRETEEEHTR
AR 2418 B B R AT IR BAR0.4278 TR
BARB 2R + AR BBITRIRERE
F25ME A 2 8 B ERTRIREFE36E A
BRI AR ARSI 0.45 BT RE - BE
REBEGRIEL AR - S0 RRIEBW S
R R F] 1 BT 2 FEF o

BER-_ZTAFHA+TREAZEHRR
B - WA RREERE ARENHMA
LA 240,000,000 17 7R #E IR 1D B 4
£K 450,000 T2 e N BRATRLR
#1,800,000/& T E TADQA  FIA HK
TT{ERRRAE R A B M B R s 8 o [BIERRRR
WEFELE 281,712,000 T E T AE
E_TThE+_A=+—HLEFEZR
B o
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

29.

BRA —AEERA DT (#)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(c) Issuance of unlisted warrants (CONTINUED)

(i) On 15th April 2009, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with several independent third
parties in relation to the issuance of 240,000,000 unlisted
warrants at HK$0.012 per warrant. The unlisted warrants
confer the rights to subscribe for new shares of the
Company at HK$0.2 per share for a period of 36 months
from the date of issue of the warrants and up to the expiry
of the 36th month from the date of issue of warrants. Each
of the subscription prices is subject to adjustments. Each
warrant carries the right to subscribe for one new share of
the Company.

The net proceeds of approximately HK$2,880,000 were
raised immediately and included in the warrant reserve.
If the warrants are exercised in full, further funds up to
HK$45,120,000 will be raised. The net proceeds raised
from the issue of the warrants are for general working
capital purpose.

30. SHARE OPTIONS

30.

i - (&)

()  BATIELmRBAER (B)

(i) RZZTAFHA+AR  AREEHH
BYE =R NREEF0.012/8T
%17 240,000,000 17 3F T R B AE B 25 7T
—DRIB A o IF L TR AR T A
R BBITHREERE B =TT RAE
& 36 8 A MR A AR 0.2/ 8 TTRB A
REIZFBN - REELATURAE -
D RIREE DM BN A REA QR 15
kAR

#12,880,000 8 7T Z A5 RIFHE AR
LRV ARBIER s - WREER
BEATE - BE—FEEEZS 45,120,000
BLZES - BITRREBEEZPAHEK
BFERRAEREEES -

B

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30th May 2002, a
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company. The New Scheme replaced the share
option scheme adopted on 17th November 2000 (the “Old
Scheme”) but without prejudice to any share option previously
granted under the Old Scheme prior to its termination. Since
the adoption of the New Scheme, no further options can be
granted under the Old Scheme.

The Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and reward to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the directors
(including executive and non-executive directors), other
employees and any professional advisor and business
consultant of the Group from time to time determined by the
directors as having contributed or who may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group. The New Scheme is
effective on 30th May 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, remains in force for 10 years from that date.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE OPTIONS (coNTINUED)

0. BRAE (&)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date
of adoption.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
including both exercised and unexercised options under the
New Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholder’s
approval in a general meeting.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any share
option schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exceeded.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to substantial share holder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

BROFEARBIRRELE - BRIEITERE
HAND RIERA 2 (E TR AR BB AR 8 TR
ZFBRBEREm A TRITZ MDA - TEE
BARRBREA A AEHETRD 2 10% -

BRI AR A R BCR A& - PMER + =B A 5
- B2 E AR B HARRRA 2
HitfB st X BRE (BRETER
WARTTE) ITEE - EETRGTFEITZAR
ARDER  THREBARFEHTRMOZ
1% o ¥R H 2 BB S Ko 2 B 17 84 B iR ja DA
LRE - BERRAS DEBRAE -

RTTE R B R AR B Z EA MBI E &
BB M RTTE 2 FA A T A T 31T 2 B fn
mE - TRBETRERITRMZ30% © iR
HBRESEEEE A LRE - AINSREAR
A RMERIRE AR BlIR H R AR -

WRAARRESE  ERTHRABREERIRN
WEEBZHBEARLBRE  FAALHE
MRHITES (TR RBRRBIREIARAZ
EABIIFAITES) fLE - tesh - RER
T EAABREAAREEERRIELIFNT
ETYRSRAZHEARDZBRES R Z
B8R BRAARREFREEETRNZ
01% @ REERARRRORIXLE AHZIE
X EFTE) #8781 5,000,000/8 7T - ERIZARE
BERAE BRI -
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

30. SHARE OPTIONS (coNTINUED)

30. B (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. Each share
option vested immediately at the date when the option is
accepted, which is the commencement of the exercise period.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the term of
the New Scheme at any time during the period commencing
one week from the date on which the option is accepted
and expiring on a date to be notified by the directors to each
grantee, which shall not be more than 10 years from the date
on which the New Scheme is adopted.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the SEHK on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the SEHK for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of grant. The subscription price will be
established by the board of directors at the time the option is
offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the New Scheme after
the date of the 10th anniversary of the adoption of the New
Scheme.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 30. B fE (@)
Old Scheme Bt
Details of options granted by the Company under the Old REBEEZTENF+_A=1T—HLEFEAN
Scheme to the executive directors and full-time employees of ARARBEEFERNAEERTES R EHE
the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company during the ERHEREZERARRD - B0 -

year ended 31st December 2008 were as follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise Outstanding at Outstanding at
price of 1st January 2008 Lapsed 31st December 2008
Name of participants Date of grant share options R-BENF during R-ZBENE
or category of share options* B —A—H the year +=A=+-8”
SHEAMEZRESR BRERLBE ZITEE 8 RATE FREY i RATHE
Other employees
Hipfgg
In aggregate 9th March 2001 3.89 75,000 (75,000) =
& “ET—F=ANH
Weighted average exercise price
INFEFIAITEE 3.8900 3.8900 =
New scheme A
Details of options granted by the Company under the New REE—ZEZNFE+-_A=1+—RHIIREEE
Scheme to the employees of the Group to subscribe for SER - KATREF:TEMNAERREE R
shares in the Company during each of the two years ended BB BB AR AR - BT -
31st December 2009 are as follows:
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise price  1st January 2009 Lapsed 31st December 2009
Name of participants Date of grant Exercise period ofshare  RZBENE during R=ZE0E
or category of share options * of share options** options*** -A-H the year +-A=1-H
SEARELER BREZRLAS  BREZTHEHE BREZTREE™ WRATHE EREN HAITE
Directors
%
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
TREEE “ETLE-ATCR 29t May 2012
e gy e 2
ZE-ZERAZTNA
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
AmELE “EECFCATCR 29t May 2012
ZERHF-ACT-RE
“3-Z¥RA-TAR
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZZHhFE+-F=+—HILFE

30. SHARE OPTIONS (coNTINUED)

30. B (&)

New scheme (CONTINUED)

Name of participants
or category

SEAEESER

Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick
B¢ v

Miss Chong Kally
AN

Other employees
HitfEE
In aggregate

af

Eligible participants
RERZEA

Weighted average
exercise price

IEFETER

Date of grant
of share options *

BREZRHRAH

12th February 2007
22t RTCA

12th February 2007
“ETHECATCA

12th February 2007
“ERHECATCH

12th February 2007
S o

Exercise period
of share options**

FREZERE

21st February 2007 to
29%th May 2012
“FEtF-A-+-HZ
Z3-ZERRZTAA

21t February 2007 to
29th May 2012
2Rt RCT-HE
“E-ZERAZTNA

21t February 2007 to
29th May 2012
S s =)
“Z-—ERR-TAA

21t February 2007 to
29th May 2012

S ey = )
—F-—FRR=TAA
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et &l (#)
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise price  1st January 2009 Lapsed 31st December 2009
ofshare  R-EFAE during R-ZE0E
options*** -A-A the year $=R=F—H
BREZTEE HRTHE ERX¥ HARTHE
072 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
072 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
0.72 13,800,000 - 13,800,000
13,800,000 - 13,800,000
072 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
48,900,000 - 48,900,000
0.72 - 072
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 30. B fE (@)
New scheme (CONTINUED) et &l (#)
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise price  1st January 2009 Lapsed 31st December 2009
Name of participants Date of grant Exercise period ofshare  RZBENF during RZEBAE
or category of share options * of share options** options*** -A-H the year +ZA=1-H
SEARERER BRE<REAS:  BREZTEHE BREZfTEE HARTHE ERX¥ HARTHE
Directors
2
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12th February 2007 21t February 2007 to 29th May 2012 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
TRERE “IRLE-F+-R “EELF-F-t-HE
—2-57A=TNR
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 29th May 2012 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
i Vit “ZTHE-F+-A —EEHF-F-f-HE
“E-ZERAZTNA
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 12th February 2007 21t February 2007 to 29th May 2012 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
IxfEE “EELE-A+-R —ZZHF-R-t-HE
“3-Z¥RA-TAR
Miss Chong Kally 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 29th May 2012 0.72 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
A S s = 5 Sy =
—2-5AA=TNR
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
Other employees
AftfEE
In aggregate 14th October 2003 28th November 2003 to 26th November 2008 1.508 750,000 (750,000) =
A% “EZSEtATME  ZEE=E+-A-tN\BZE
ZER\E—A=TA
12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 29th May 2012 0.72 13,800,000 - 13,800,000
“ESHE-AYCR  ZEEtE-A-f-HE
“2-57A=TNR
14,550,000 (750,000) 13,800,000
Eligible participants 12th February 2007 21st February 2007 to 29th May 2012 0.72 7,100,000 - 7,100,000
BERSEA “ZELE-F+-R “EELF-F-t-HE
“Z-Z57A=TNA
49,650,000 - 48,900,000
Weighted average 0.7319 1.508 0.72
exercise price
MELHTER
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 HZE—ZTTNF+—_A=1+—HIEFE

30. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 30. B fE (@)

New scheme (CONTINUED) st &l ()

@ The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until * ZEBRE FRAEREBHEETEHZH
the commencement of the exercise period. Y =p:E

o5 The exercise period will lapse in three months after the resignation > TTEEIE R ER AR TR =EA KR -
of grantee.

***  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in e -7/ N/NI= Bl 7 NI B = e R = = 13 7. AW = 1)
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the BUES)  ZEBEREZITEER THE -
Company'’s share capital.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31st REEZTTNFR=_TTN\F+_A=+—

December 2009 and 2008. B 1E4F 200 5 R AR -

No liabilities were recognised on the equity-settled share- WESABRELEEURO I T 2R 5 ERE

based payment transactions. f& o

At 31st December 2009, the number of shares in respect R-BZNF+-_A=+—8  BEERET

of which options had been granted and remain outstanding S EEREERHBMARTEZRG ZE

under the share option schemes was 48,900,000 (2008: H /48,900,000 f& (=== J\ £ : 48,900,000

48,900,000) representing 2.6% (2008: 4%) of the shares of f%) - AEARR RN Z BB TGN 22.6% (=

the Company in issue at that date and the weighted average TENF : 4%) - IETFHAFBRELNHR A2.4

remaining contractual life of 2.4 years (2008: 3.4 years). F(ZETNF :34F) -
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

31. RESERVES

31. B

Group
The amount of the Group’s reserve and movements for the
current and prior year are presented in the consolidated

TEE

PRINGEREZEH R ARAPBRE

statement of changes in equity on page 41 of the financial F418 -
statements.
Company PN
Share Capital
Share  Contributed option Warrant  redemption  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RARE  S0HBH% BRERE JREREE E1RRRE W 2EFR L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL ThL TaEx ThL ThEL TAL TARL
At Ist January 2008 W=ZZ\F—-A—-A 538,686 588,178 5,598 3,504 - (372,706) 763,320
Shares repurchased EIEERR D (10,080) - - = 4623 - (5,457)
Expenses incurred in BEEERN
connection with repurchase  MELZHX
of shares (60) - = = = - (60)
Transaction with owners ~ SEEEAZX% (10,140) - - - 4,623 - (5517)
Loss for the year ENBR = = = = = (54,598) (54,598)
Total comprehensive FRZAUAEE
income for the year - - - - = (54,598) (54,598)
Transfer of contributed surplus BRI 4 B - (316,755) - - - 316,755 =
At 31st December 2008 ~ R=-ZENE
and 1st January 2009 +=A=t-Bk
“SENF-A-B 5856 271423 5,598 3,564 4623 (110549) 703206
Purchase and cancellation of ~ B[E Jz s S8R 1T
outstanding unlisted warrants ¥ 2 3F £ Rk - - - (1,800) - - (1,800)
Expenses incurred in BRREE R
connection with purchase KT ZFE LT
and cancellation of AR MEE
outstanding warrants A% - - - (52) - - (52)
Issue of new unlisted warrants Z/733F F AR ER - = = 2,880 - - 2,880
Expenses incurred in AR THFELD
connection with issue RREEMEEZHZ
of new unlisted warrants - - - (50) = = (50)
Shares issued upon NG IEUNSIEES
acquisition of a subsidiary ~ E{7ZfRfH 73911 = = = = = 73911
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31. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

31. & (&)

Company (CONTINUED) RAT) ()
Share Capital
Share  Contributed option Warrant  redemption  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RIEE fnEy  BRERE JREIRE ZABRRE ZRER ax
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TERL TERT THET TERL TR
Transaction with owners BEEAZRS 73911 - - 978 - - 74,889
Profit for the year EREF - - - - = 4955 4,955
Total comprehensive ER2EUAEE
income for the year - - - - - 4955 4955
Transfer to refained eamings  BEZRBE7 - - = (1,712) = 1712 -
At 31st December 2009 ~ W=ZEhE
+ZA=+-H 602,457 271,423 5,598 2,830 4,623 (103,882) 783,049
(a) Contributed surplus (a) BB
The Group’s contributed surplus amount is the ARERE 2 BN B ER R EE R LA T PR IE R
net effect of the amount that arose from the group ZFHE  —NWNEFLtATNBZE

reorganisation on 18th July 1990, which represented
the difference between the nominal value of the
Company’s share issued under the reorganisation
scheme, in exchange for the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the amount that
arose from the capital reorganisation on 1st April 2003
which represented the balance of the credit amount
arising from the capital reduction and share premium
cancellation after the elimination with the accumulated
losses of the Company as at 31st December 2001.

It was resolved by the directors of the Company that an
amount of HK$316,755,000 be transferred from the
contributed surplus account to the accumulated losses
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company with
effect from 28th February 2008.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

31. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

31. & (&)

(b)  Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain
companies in the PRC are required to transfer part
of their profits after tax determined under the PRC
accounting standards to the statutory reserve fund,
before profit distributions are made. The amounts
of the transfers are subject to the approval of the
boards of directors of these companies and/or articles
of association. The statutory reserve fund is non-
distributable and may be used either to offset losses, or
for capitalisation issues by way of paid-up capital.

(c) Warrants reserve
(i)  This reserve related to the issue of warrantes in
October 2007, details of which are shown in note
29(c)(i).

(i) The balance as at 31st December 2009 also
relates to the issue of other batch of warrants on
15th April 2009, details of which are shown in
note 29(c)(ii).

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(b) ZEERBES
RETERG - FEERNETARAE
TEREM D IRAT - BEBORETES
FAEAEECREENBROREFHEBE
T BRBBEZEARZETE M
BER/RARERME  EEREEES
AR K + AT F R 18 s A R iR
AR AR EAR(LETT -

(c) RIRERRE
(i) WERBER-_ZTLF+ARTR
B AR - AR BIIRIRE

29(c)(i) »

(il RZZETAF+-_A=+—H2#&
BINE T T NEFN A+ R BT
Hib R EEER - BT
HBTEE 29(c)(ii) °

32. KEHERH

Group

As lessee
At the reporting date, the Group has no (2008: HK$612,000
(fell due within one year)) future minimum lease payment
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
premises

The operating lease payments represented rental payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises and staff quarters.
Leases were negotiated for a term ranged from one to three
years, with an option to renew the lease and renegotiated
the terms at the expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and the respective lessors. None of the
leases included contingent rentals.

TEE

TEAAM T

REER AEBYETAMEMESCEH
EvHERREMBLSAE(ZZETNE:
612,000 77T (R—FAEH))

REHERIEAKERETHAERETE
ERNZES - BRIEN/E—E=4F "1
BEEHRIRI A SIAEEESHHETEE
FEZBHBRGR - IEROBEKER
%o
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. KEHELH (E)
(CONTINUED)

Group (CONTINUED) RERE (#)

As lessor rERM T

The Group leases its investment properties and properties AEBRBELCEHELHLHAREMEREFE
held for sale under operating lease arrangements, with Y HERA—FE_+F1E  ARER
lease terms ranging from one to twenty years, with an option FfHAEEEEHEEEZRTE 2 BHEH
to renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as HE KR - AEKFBENERA L K
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective % WAREEER 2 e ARAES -

tenants. The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market

conditions.
Property rental income earned during the year was REFE 2 WERS KA R39,712,0007 7T (=
HK$39,712,000 (2008: HK$23,418,000). ZTE/)\F : 23,418,000/87T) °
At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with tenants RBER  ASEHEBEFIE 2 BB RIEREMS
for the following future minimum lease payments: LT -
2009 2008
ZBEhF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within one year —FR 46,870 30,994
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFEERFN(ERMFREENA) 78,801 65,238
After five years AF% 12,301 13,878
137,972 110,110
Company /N |
The Company does not have any significant operating lease RN B3 4 AR B A AR ST S R

commitments.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—TZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

33. AL E

(a)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Details of the transactions with Jingke Information have
set out in note 18 to the financial statements. In 2008,
an amount of HK$143,000 was repaid and accordingly,
the provision of impairment on the amounts due from
was reversed to profit or loss

During the year, the Company paid HK$529,000
(2008: HK$383,000) for the corporate secretarial
services provided by Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited.
Mr. Tse Kam Fai, an executive director of the Company,
is also a director of the said company.

During the year, the Group traded listed securities
through Thing On Securities Limited (“Thing On”), of
which Mr. Wong Chung Tak (“Mr. Wong"), an executive
director of the Company, is also a director of Thing On.
The Group paid approximately HK$312,000 (2008:
HK$649,000) to Thing On as handling commission.

During the year, the Group paid HK$515,000 (2008:
HK$136,000) for the lease of an office premises owed
by Yue Tin, Mr. Wong is also a director of Yue Tin, an
ex-related company of the Company.

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Yue Tin from Junny Diamond Co., Limited
(“Junny”) of which Mr. Wong is also a director. The
acquisition of Yue Tin were detailed in note 34.

During the year, the Group received rental income of
HK$1,296,000 (2008: Nil) for leasing out the an office
premise and a residential property to Junny, Mr. Wong
is also a director of Junny, a related company of the
Company.

(a)

()

HERHME BET 2R S FRBHR U B
KMF18 - R=ZZT)N\F CDEEE
143,00078 7T + At + ZERFIEZ BE
BEC BB EERE -

RAFE  AARGRHE—CERBER
ARIFTRAE 2 A RIRE RIS S 1529,000
BIT(ZZFZ/\4F : 383,000/87T) © AR
RIITEEHBBEENAZARIZE
$ °

RAEE  AEEEBRELEHFEBRA
ABZ])BEE EMES  AAFMT
EETREEE(ERED)TABLZ
EE - AEBEINEL 312,000 T
T\ : 649,000 TT)E AL HER
ﬁ °

RAFEE  NEBRERAREF IR
BERRBAMER ZMAEMEE N
515,000 7T (ZFZ )\ 4 : 136,000/
) MERETRBMAZIES -

RAFE  AEEREEETETES
ZENEAARAR(TEF )48 H
Z R RPARAE ot B R IE B R34 ©

RAEE - AEERE N LA —H#
REMEREEYE  BFESHA
1,296,000 87 (ZZF\F : &) - 54
EMBARABIMERRIENZESE -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. Al AR (@)
(CONTINUED)
(g) Key management personnel compensation: (8 EEZEBEAEHM
Included in employee benefit expenses are key FEEBEAEBHMWTABEIEBFAS
management personnel compensation and comprise BEATER

the following categories:

2009 2008
—EEhEF —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
Short term employee benefits EHREEREH 3,365 3,307
Contributions to retirement RNEFFT B R
benefits schemes 24 24
3,389 3,351
34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 34. WEMEB QR
On 19th August 2009, the Group acquired 100% of the share REZZZNFNATNE  AEEREREZ
capital of Yue Tin, a company engaged in investment property 2EARAR - R AR B IREMEITER -
holding.
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
WU 7] Fair value
ZIREE AFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Investment properties* LEE 299,477 294,977
Properties, plant and equipment* ME -~ BERERE* 1,010 1,260
Prepaid lease payments* FE A EFE 5,179 13,420
Cash at banks RITIRES 4 4
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R H AR 5RIA (2,215) (2,215)
Amount due to shareholder R R FTA (143,241) (143,241)
Deferred tax liabilities * RERIEAE (28,090) -
Net assets acquired FrikEE # & E 132,124 164,205
Net cash flow arising on the acquisition: EEA 7 FIR LR
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 103,535
Cash at banks in subsidiary acquired  FrUtBER B A R Z $E1TIH S (4)
Cash outflow on acquisition W ZH SR 103,531
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(CONTINUED)

34. BB A R (80

Yue Tin held primarily investment properties with no
associated services at the date of acquisition. The underlying
set of assets acquired was not integrated in forming a
business to generate revenues. As such, the directors are of
opinion that the acquisition of Yue Tin was a purchase of net
assets which did not constitute a business combination for
accounting purposes. As the acquisition is settled by cash and
issue of the Company’s shares, this is classified as an equity
settled share-based payment transaction. The fair value of
the consideration shares should be recognised based on the
fair value of the net assets acquired after deducting the cash
consideration.

* Certain reclassification have been made amongst these accounts to

conform with the Group’s presentation.

# In the determination of fair value of net assets acquired, the
initial recognition exemption available in HKAS 12 was applied
and as a result, no deferred tax liabilities have been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. This exemption has
been applied as set out in HKAS 12 even though the exemption
represents a pragmatic non-conceptual approach to deferred
taxation accounting. In general financial statements prepared in
accordance with relevant HKFRSs would result in a true and fair
view and based on this principle, no deferred tax liabilities have

been recognised.

WENEE R BEERARBEREZRED
X HBARBZEEL RBREBEERA -
At - EFRREERASBEFEE - HY
TERAREFBENME 2XBA6 - WA
RUARERBTARABRNEE - IDBRBIN
BiEEE 2 BRI AN TR S - REBRDZA
FEBBMEEFEEZ A TENGRRESRE
RHER -

* ZERETEFEHETERAR  UEEAEE
2255 -

# NEEWEFEEQATES  AIREFESE
A 125 R B RER S - BEUt U\ A8
BBRREREIEFIR - BB GHERE 125
Pl - MG MEIREH B EN S REBRME
Bem - BEERM - —MME - RIEAEE
B BREEURR 2 MBREAT TAERAFR
R - ERULIERA - WERERIEETIA -

Details of the net assets acquired were as follows: FriiE 2 FEEFBNT
HK$’000
FET
Purchase consideration settled in shares R EE 2 BENRE 103,535
Purchase consideration settled BITRMNEE ZIBERE
in issue of shares 203,911

Loan from a Shareholder PR E (143,241)
Fair value of net assets acquired kg S EEZ A FE (164,205)
Goodwill [EES _
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

35. HEKB AT

(@)

During the year, the Group disposed of several

subsidiaries as follows:

(i)

follows:

Net assets disposed of comprise:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash at banks

Intercompany debt

Group’s share of net assets disposed of
Disposal of amount due

from disposed subsidiary
Net gain on disposals of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow arising on disposals:
Cash consideration received
Cash at banks disposed of
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(@) REFE > AEEHEETHEAR -
BRWE :

The Group disposed of its wholly-owned (i)

subsidiaries, namely Gateway Sino Limited

(“Gateway Sino”) for HK$10,400,000. Net assets

of Gateway Sino at the date of disposal were as

gz REERRE
BAFESIABRE
ZEMEE
RITRE
SBAREEES

AEBEEHEFEE

HERKE HEMBAR

Z A
HEME AR 2 F K

AT AN -
bk

HEELZFRERN
BEHEREHKE
HERTHRS

7N £ @ LA (B 10,400,000 7T H &
HE2>EMBARALEARAR (4
Bt - N HE B2 R EEN
T

HK$'000
FiERT

10,210

190
(10,012)

388

10,012

10,400

10,400

10,400

(190)

10,210
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

35. HEME QT @)

(a) During the year, the Group disposed of several (@) RAFE  xAEEHEETHEAR
subsidiaries as follows: BRME :
(i)  The Group disposed of its wholly-owned (il  AKEAREARY 2,000,0007T

(5E42,272,00087T) HEEE
EMBARRNBERARRA (X
NER] - XHEBERNEEBHZ
BEFELT

subsidiary, namely Marax Development Limited
(“Marax Development”) for RMB2,000,000
(equivalent to HK$2,272,000). Net liabilities of
Marax Development, at the date of disposal, were

as follows:

HK$’000
FEx
Net liabilities disposed of comprise: FTH&Ez 8BEFRERE
Investment in joint ventures REBERERE -
Other payables and accrued charges H M RIE R ERTE A (10)
Intercompany debts SBERARIEER (36,649)
Group’s share of net liabilities disposed of ANE[E fE(E H & & (&% 58 (36,659)
Waiver of amount due from e ERE L EHE AR ZRIE
disposed subsidiary 36,649
Translation reserve realised B IR E K (887)
Statutory reserve realised B RE R (190)
Net gain on disposals of a subsidiary HEMB AR FWE 3,359
2,272
Satisfied by: IATBIFT A AT
Cash Re 2,272
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEEEZFRERA ¢
Total cash consideration RERELRE 2,272
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEMB Q3 (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) During the year, the Group disposed of several (@) RAFE  XEEHEETHEAR
subsidiaries as follows: (CONTINUED) BRIMT : (&)
(i)  The Company disposed of its wholly-owned (i)  ARBEAKIE6,800,000/8 T HE
subsidiary, namely Asset Wheel Limited (“Asset HE2EMBLAR=ERRAR ([
Wheel”) for HK$6,800,000. Net assets of Asset &) NEEHBHEEZFEEN
Wheel at the date of disposal, were as follows: T
HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of comprise: FIHEZEERERSRE
Cash at banks RITIRE 6,634
Intercompany debts EBAQRIEERS (6,608)
Group’s share of net assets disposed of ~ ANEEE(G HEEEFE 26
Disposal of amount due from HEREWE HERB AR Z5HIE
disposed subsidiary 6,608
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 FRE 166
6,800
Satisfied by: LATRB AR AT -
Cash e 6,800
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEELEZFHSRA
Cash consideration RERE 6,800
Cash at banks disposed of BEHERITRS (6,634)
166
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEKB QT (#®)
(CONTINUED)
(b) In 2008, the Group had disposed of several (b) R=-ZBENG XEBEEHEETHE
subsidiaries as follows: AR BERWOT :
(i) The Company had disposed of its wholly-owned () ARFAABREIBTHERLS
subsidiaries, namely Great View Technology E B A= Great View Technology
Limited, Mitchell Enterprises Limited, Smart Ally Limited  Mitchell Enterprises
Investments Limited, Mission Hill International Limited ~ Smart Ally Investments
Limited and Cleo International Limited (the Limited ~ Mission Hill International
“Disposal Companies”) at a total consideration of Limited A2 Cleo International Limited
HK$39. (TEEARD -
Net liabilities of the Disposal Companies, at the BNz HEARREERBH A&
date of disposal, were as follows: FEEAT
HK$'000
FET
Net liabilities disposed of comprise: it &E2 8EFERIE
Intercompany debts EBAQRIEER (150,897)
Other payables Hth fEA FRIE (500)
Tax payables FEI 18 (1,425)
Group’s share of net liabilities disposed of AE&EE(GHEBEFHA (152,822)
Waiver of amount due from MR ERE L ERB AR ZRIE
disposed subsidiaries 150,897
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries HENB AR ZFRES 1,925
Satisfied by: ARSI G R ZAT
Cash Be -
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEEEZFHRERA
Cash consideration RERE =
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

35. HEME QT @)

(b) In 2008, the Group had disposed of several (b) R-ZENFE AEECHEETHE
subsidiaries as follows: (CONTINUED) AR BRWT © (#)
(i) The Company had disposed of its wholly-owned (i) AN & &l B & K E8,366,000%
subsidiary, namely Yoko Star Investments T EE 2 EME QR FYoko
Limited (“Yoko Star”) for HK$8,366,000. Net Star Investments Limited ([ Yoko
liabilities of Yoko Star, at the date of disposal, Star|) - & 2 Yoko StarIMHE H
were as follows: Bz a@EFENT

HK$'000
FAT
Net liabilities disposed of comprise: it &2 BEFHERIE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE 7,794
Intercompany debt SBRNAEIRER (7,799)
Group’s share of net liabilities disposed of A& [ fE(h & & (F/F58 5)
Disposal of amount due from HERKE HEWB AR Z5KIE
disposed subsidiary 7,799
Net gain on disposals of subsidiary HENB AR ZF RS 572
8,366
Satisfied by: LATRB A AT -
Cash Be 8,366
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEEEZFHRSTA
Total cash consideration ReEREBEE 8,366
Less: unsettled cash consideration B AZFRERE (2,000)
6,366
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36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. &4 B & RE XM
OF CASH FLOW

As detailed in note 34, part of the purchase consideration in MR 34 Fral - g R 2 S0 BEREBRB
respect of the acquisition of Yue Tin was satisfied by the issue AE A% 0.3137 47T 817 650,000,000 A2 482 &)
of 650,000,000 new ordinary shares at HK$0.3137 each of TR AT -
the Company.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. cRiEREE B ERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risk such as AEEEEZBERERE - hnmEEE (8
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk FEONE RS « FIXER - MMERRR) 28
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from R RREELRR  ZERBEREELE R
both its operating and investing activities. According to the WEHR - BEASE 7 EERAKREEBE K
Group’s written risk management policies and guidelines, 63 eREKREREEEZEESRTSZIR
the financial risk shall be assessed continuously by the 1T 1615 B E M AR A 4 B 5 4B R A DA S R B
management taken into account of the prevailing conditions BHEF o NEEWL A FEAERITESEA
of the financial market and other relevant variables to avoid TEESHER - AEBEFEGZXEZSH
excessive concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any RRE50T

derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

Market risk s R

(i) Foreign currency risk (i) SNEEE
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or BEERRESRTIAEZ AFESKRSE
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate & mE FE NS TE R FE) MR E) 2 AR
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The NEF,/ KNRBEZBEETBRPEEE
Group/Company mainly operates and invests in KR E » KZEXGHRABETREAR
Hong Kong and PRC with most of the transactions BOIRREE - BRHENEZERFHE
denominated and settled in Hong Kong Dollars and Az EBER ZIEEERERZEET
RMB respectively. No foreign currency risk has T~ EmRFRE SR E E I AR R
been identified for the financial assets in the PRC as HNERBR o ANEE AR E ZINER K
they were denominated in a currency same as the FERERATEIAEBRERZEME
functional currencies of the group entities to which E - BWERMRITES  BEUET
these transactions relate. The Group’s/Company’s (IZEx)) BB (B 5 -

exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arises from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loan
receivables and bank balances which are denominated
in United States Dollars (“US$”) and Australian Dollars
(“AUD").
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

37. cRIERERE R FERBEE (&)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (coNTINUED)

Group and Company

To mitigate the Group’s/Company’s other exposure to
foreign currency risk, cash flows in foreign currencies
are monitored in accordance with the Group’s/
Company’s risk management policies. The foreign

TS E R (8

() SMEER (&)
FEBRART
RREAEE KRR REAMINERE -
SMERERBRIBARE RRFZEA
REBBRETER - INEIIREME
ERBERKMEXRBESETT) I

currency denominated financial assets and liabilities, ~:
translated into Hong Kong dollars at closing rates, are
as follows:
Group Company
558 Y|
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEINF ZZENE BN ZZRN\E
Expressed in HK$'000 Expressed in HK$'000 Expressed in HK$'000 Expressed in HK$'000
NTALRT NFETER NFRLET WFETLRT
AUD Us$ AUD US$ AUD Us$ AUD US$
R ES R i R ES A eI
Financial assets atfairvalue  RATENABEE
through profit or loss LEREE - - - 7315 - - = 7315
Cashand bank balances B2 kiffT5 - 8,299 7,160 7,140 - 8,299 7,160 7137
Overall net exposure TERRFE - 8,299 7,160 14455 - 8,299 7,160 1445

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group/Company does
not expect any significant movements in the US$/HK$
exchange rates. No sensitivity analysis in respect of
the Group’s/Company’s financial assets denominated
in US$ is disclosed as in the opinion of directors,
such sensitivity analysis does not give additional value
in view of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$
exchange rates as at the reporting date. The following
table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s/
Company’s profit for the year and equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates to which the Group/Company has significant
exposure at the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—-TZNF+_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. &RiEEE B R R BUR (#)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED) i Bk ()
(1) Foreign currency risk (coNTINUED) (i) SMEE ()
Group and Company (CONTINUED) AEBRADT (H)
Group Company
A58 KRR
2009 2008 2009 208
ZERNE EE)\E ZERRE ERNE
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)
inforeign ~ Effecton inforeign  Efecton inforeign  Effecton inforeign  Effecton
exchange  profitfor  Effecton  exchange  pofitfor  Effecton  exchange  profitfor  Effecton  exchenge  profitfor  Effecton
rates  the year equity rales  theyear equy rates  the year equity rates  theyear equy
HEE® HAEE  HER JMEEX SRR 4B MEER  WAEE  HER  MEER  aER dE
18/(RE) EAeEE B8 AE/BE) BAZEE P2 AR/(RE) EAREE B8 AR/(BE) RAcE 72
HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKSOOO  HK$000
Tén  THL T fin T TER Tér  TEn
AUD . +5% - - +5% 8 8 +5% - - +% 38 Rl
-5% - - -5% (353) (358) -5% - - -5% (359) (358)
The Group’s exposure to currency option contracts is AEEFEBRER RS D2 INER
considered to be immaterial. B R BT TNERX -
The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been AEERANFABAFEUNR—EE
followed by the Group and the Company since prior TEEIIMNERER 2 BER - WRAZFIH
years and are considered to be effective. REM -
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FEEE

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
and the Company have no borrowing. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates
relates primarily to unlisted equity-linked notes and
bank balances which bear floating interest rates.

The Group/Company manages interest rate risk by
monitoring its interest rate profile as set out in note 25
by using a mix of fixed and variable rate investments,
including bank deposits.

MERBESHMTAZATFESRSR
ERMSMEEBHMKE AR - A&
B MARBWEER o AERERFKE
bz 5 R = B EIRERHIEBA X
2 I ETIRAEHNRIE R IRITAEARER o

AEE AR EEBREF RN (a0
25 L) FRAEE KFBHRIRE (2
BRTHER) 26KEs  EENXE

B -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. s A REEB ERBER (@)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (coNTINUED)
Market risk (CONTINUED) G R (E)
(i)  Interest rate risk (contivuep) (i) FUEEE (&)
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the fisi EE FIHEF = FH = 100 1EE 24 M F£4K 100
profit after tax for the year and retained earnings to a EER (T )\F : A= 100 EZE2 R
change in interest rates of +100 basis points and-100 FRE 100 1EEZL) - AEFEERTIEZ R &
basis points (2008: +100 basis points and-100 basis REBREFNBBREDTHINNR TR » iR
points) with effect from the beginning of the year. The BAEENR 2MBA BTG 2 RITES
calculations are based on the Group’s bank balances FTE - BFTAEMEERIETE o
held at each reporting date. All other variables are held
constant.
2009 2008
i -3 —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT
If interest rates were 100 basis points f##Z 7+ 100 B2
(2008: 100 basis points) higher (ZZTN\F : 10018E)
Net profit for the year would FELF M
increase by 3,260 2,920
If interest rates were 100 basis points {72 (& 100 {& £ 2h
(2008: 100 basis points) lower (ZZTN\F : 1001EE)
Net profit for the year would FEMHFERD
decrease by (3,260) (2,920)
At 31st December 2008, the exposure to interest rates R-ZTZN\F+_F=+—8 K&EH XA
for the Group/Company’s unlisted equity-linked notes AIRIE L 2 RANEMI IR RIS FE 2 F K
and cash equivalents was considered immaterial. RBRIEAR AL TERX ©
The policies to manage interest rate risk have been RNEM AR RBBEFEAR—HETFTZF
followed by the Group/Company since prior year are EEEBEIRBRWR BB

considered to be effective.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

37. cRIEREE R BERBUE (&)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(i)

Price risk

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than
changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates).
The Group and the Company are exposed to other price
risk arising from listed equity investments and equity-
linked notes classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Details about the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are set out in note
24. The board of directors manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
and return profiles and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise. The policies to manage
price risk have been followed by the Group/Company
since prior year are considered to be effective.

Group and Company

For the listed equity securities, an average volatility
of 33.03% and 30.86% has been observed in the
Hang Seng Index and Shanghai A Share Index during
2009 respectively (2008: 51.31% and 45.32%). If the
quoted stock price for these securities had increased or
decreased by that amount, the Group’s profit after tax
for the year and the equity would have been increased
or decreased by approximately HK$3,925,000 (2008:
HK$18,938,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the price change had occurred at the reporting
date and has been applied to the Group and the
Company’s investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

™5 Rk ()
(i) E&mE

ERRERESRTAZ A FESIKRER
SREGHEDHER (FERESHRINE
BHRIN) HEMFBNER - ARER
ARBZ HEBRRRIE EHRAR
& BABRBER (DBEAEAFEIIA
Bk EREE) T - RERAFE
SIAREIR 2 B E E 2 FFBHENH T
24 - EXEFB/ERAETRARR KM
BeREEAERERR  YERHE
B E @ htmk - ARE AR FH
BEFEARDET 2 EERERRREK
RIRBREI

AEERART

HREMZBEAES  CEBRELERE
#NEBAREBER —ZENF 2T
W8 9 Al 533.03% K% 30.86% (—EZF
N4 :51.31% K% 45.32%) i % & &
FZ BB ENSHEEZEE - A
SR EARFEE 2 BRBRE N R 2 i N
R #)3,925,0008 T (ZEZ )\ F ¢
18,938,000 7T) °

FREATHRREBEHBEAENRSE
B YEEARAKERANARRZA
ZERE

AEEBBEFENR-—BEETRAE
REREEBE - ZFHREAREXR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

37. cRIERERE R FERBEE (&)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial
loss to the Group. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, loan receivables and cash and cash equivalents
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets. The carrying amounts of these
financial assets presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of impairment losses, if any.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit and loan receivables over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the debtors’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtors as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
debtors operates. Trade receivables are due within 90 days
from the date of billing. The Group does not obtain collateral
from customers in respect of trade receivables, while for loan
receivables, collaterals are usually obtained (see note 23).

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries, other
receivables and bank balances.

The credit risk on Group and the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-ratings
agencies.

The Group and the Company have no significant
concentration of credit, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—ZTZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. &RiEERE B R R BUR (#)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

Credit risk (cONTINUED)

The credit and investment policies have been followed by the
Group/Company since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to
a decisive level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.
In the management of liquidity risk, the directors monitor
and maintain a level of bank balances deemed adequate to
finance the Group’s operations investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working capital
requirements mainly by the funds generated from operations
and from fund raising activities such as placement of new
shares and issuance of warrants.

All the Group and Company’s financial liabilities will be
settled within 12 months from the reporting date. As at 31st
December 2009 and 2008, the Group and the Company have
no borrowings. Based on the assessment of the directors,
liquidity risk encountered by the Group and the Company is
minimal.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group/
Company since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.

Fair value measurement recognised in the statement of
financial position — Group

The Group adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7 Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments effective from
1st January 2009. These amendments introduce a three-
level hierarchy for fair value measurement disclosures and
additional disclosures about the relative reliability of fair
value measurements. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions in the amendments to HKFRS 7 and
accordingly, no comparatives for the hierarchy for fair value
measurement have been presented.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31st December 2009 and
2008.

FERR (3
AEE/RARBBEFEUARBETEER
REHE  ZEBRERAREAEEEER
BIRHIZEFDRENRFTEER

REE SRR
wBEeRBRIEAEERERTHEEMEE
MNEANRER -SREBRDESRERME @ =
FERTARFEREHENATERLSIRER
g RIEMIER CIRITEMKT - REEEEE
BISERES &S REVEES (LL AL
R RBETRIRER) TS ECRNHEESR
AFEK o

AEBRARBZABESREERILHREBH
Bt —EARES R-ZEThAFER-ZFEN
Ft+-A=1+—R AEERARRLEE
K RBEEFNE - ARBRAQBZRBE
TR -

AEE KNRREBEFEAR-—BEETRE
BeBE  ZEBREABAREERDESA
RITEAR °

RUMBRRRER DV EFE-FEH

$$@ﬁ@§%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%wﬂﬁﬂ$)
EREMTAREZSE ZEBFITBE_ETN
F-A—HBEK- M#WTakﬁ§ﬁ$ﬁ
AEMNZEFSR  RERNATEFENRER
SN ZBINEE - AEECHNREEMBRE
ERIF7FREFT AR BEMERR - Bt A&
HAFEFESREINLBHT -

FrEEMIANEFERN _STNFR-_ZTT
NEFE+_A=+—"HZAFELEEREZEZ
SHEEY -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

37. cRIERERE R FERBEE (&)

Fair value measurement recognised in the statement of
financial position-Group (CONTINUED)

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the statement of financial position
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy
groups financial assets and liabilities into three levels
based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used
in measuring the fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets and liabilites;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

follows:

Assets

BE MiaE

Listed equity securities held for REBFIEEEZ
trading in Hong Kong TR AR

Notes

REBRRRERDPENE - FKE (8)

TREIREBERFEFRHERAFBRRNE A
AFEFEZERMEENAE - ZFRHER
BeRMEERBBEZAVEFEMRAZER
BWABZHEAEG  BeREERABEI R
= ATHESRBIESEWT

- BE:UBNEEREBENEETS
ZHRE (RIEHE)

- FE: BAEHABEER(BIER)KE
Z(BERTE) IBR 2 BAE £—
BRiEzRERN &

- FZE:EERARYFREMEATE
SBRBEHAE(TABRGAE) °

ATEERHEDBHERH AT BT E
BESNBAEHRERR %5 EHOWE
ESABETERAR -

RUBRREAANFEEFEZEREERRA
FESEHEIEWT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ E-R E=R z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THT FAxT FAT
11,885 - - 11,885

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose
of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to previous
reporting periods.

(a) Listed securities
The listed equity securities are denominated in HK$ and RMB.
Fair values have been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the reporting date and have been translated using the
spot foreign currency rates at the end of the reporting period where
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HZE—ZTZNF+—_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conTINUED)

37. cRIEREE R FERBEE (#)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group and the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities recognised at the reporting
date may also be categorised as follows. See notes 3.11 and

CREERESRMABEIBZHE

KEBRARTRBEIERRZ eMEER
ERMABZHREENASENT - RHE3.11
R31OFHASHMT AN BMAZE ARG

3.19 for explanations about how the category of financial £ o
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.
Group Company
REH ¥N/NE|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENE —TTN\F —EThE —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TEx FHET
Financial assets SHEE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE 2,300 = - =
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value BATFEIABRE
through profit or loss CEREE
— designated upon initial recognition — TR ETE - 27,157 - 27,157
- held for trading —#EHEEE 11,885 38,106 11,885 27,855
Loans and receivables: EX R EMGE -
— Trade receivables — R 3,333 1,658 - =
— Other receivables —H ik FE 3,114 6,480 2,921 1,181
- Amounts due from subsidiaries o L NGIE ¢ - = 1,129,807 754,284
— Loans and receivables —ER K ENGRE 20,400 13,000 - =
— Cash and cash equivalents -HekReER 325,970 439,762 105,262 239,882
367,002 526,163 1,249,875 1,050,359
Financial liabilities tREE
Current liabilities TBEE
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA - 9% - 9%
Financial liabilities measured at RN AT E
amortised cost ZEmafE:
- Other payables —HENFIE 52,104 66,654 1,535 1,550
— Amounts due to subsidiaries —ERWBRRHE - - 104,372 115,374
52,104 66,750 105,907 117,020
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38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 38. EAEEBBEXNRERF

PROCEDURES
The Group’s capital management objectives are: REEZEATEBRA
—  to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going — HERASEBESENESN K

concern; and

= to provide an adequate return to shareholders. — REEELEHmTRE -

The directors of the Company also balance its overall RRRIZEEZNERTEEEREARLEE - B
capital structure periodically. In order to maintain or adjust B FABREARRE - NEBEF RN TR
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of R B BTN RREE - AR
dividend paid to shareholder, new shares issue as well as of BRI ARRIZEENHEREESRE
warrants. The directors of the Company will also consider the BRIEAEARZ B - RRRZERE ZBHE
raise of long-term borrowings as second resource of capital BRREREBKAGE

when investment opportunities arise and the return of such
investments will justify the cost of debts from the borrowings.

2009 2008

—EThEF —ET)\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Total equity AR 1,462,030 1,162,806

Borrowings B - =

Overall financing RhE E%R 1,462,030 1,162,806

Capital-to-overall financing ratio BRI E BT = 1:0 1:0

The directors of the Company also endeavour to ensure RRRIZEENBNIBRATEBEEZRE

the steady and reliable cash flow from the normal business RAEZBER - MEEAN - AEBREES
operation. For both years, the Group did not raise any debt. EEIER -
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. TEME AT

R=ZBAF+=A=+—A  ARFLEH
BARSENT -

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31st
December 2009 are as follows:

Nominal value of

Percentage of issued/
paid-up capital held by

issued ordinary share the Company
Place of capitaliregistered RAFFHBRT/
incorporation/ capital BEERLAH
Name operations ERTEBRA Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
&R HRRL/ B ZEE/RRER HE i TEXH
Assets Partners Group British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
Limited (“BVI") 1RER1=T RERR
RERAHE
A
Cathay Holdings Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 - Securities trading
Limited Bk 2RER1IAT provision of financial
AREEERAR services and
investment holding
FHEE  RECHRBR
REER
New Phenomenon B 1 share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
Technology Limited HBRAHE 1RER1ET AR
Opportunity Investments B 1 share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
Limited ERRLHS 1RER1ZT RERR
Goldseed Developments Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 Property leasing
Limited B 2RER1AT NERE
ERERARAH
Twente Company Limited BVI/PRC 100 shares of US$1 each - 100 Property investment
RERAES/HE 100RER1%T NERE
Sharp World Investments BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100 - Property investment
Limited ERRNES 1RER1ET NERE
Glory Faith Holdings Limited B 1 share of US$1 each 100 - Property investment
RRRAHS 1kER1%T NERE
Oriental Grand Development Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 Property investment
Limited &E 2RER1ET NERE
ERERARAR
Profit Ever Holdings Limited B 1 share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
RRRAHS 1REBR1%T RERR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39. FEMB LT (&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary share

Place of capital/registered
incorporation/ capital
Name operations BRTEBRE
2 BalAVEd-3t ZEE/FRER
Stadium Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each
EOERERAR Bh 2EER1AT
Grandtex Development Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each
ERERERAR Eh 1005REKR BT
GOI Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each
A 2BER1ATT
Yue Tin Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each
i % 2RERLET
Dawning Information Industry PRC HK$152,120,000
(Shenzhen) Limited # 152,120,000/ 75
BrESEX (R ERAR!
RNEFEE(RIARAT PRC H$10,000,00
# 10,000,000 7T
# Limited liability companies and wholly foreign-owned enterprises

registered in the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company as at
31st December 2009 which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of Group. To give details
of all the subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.
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Percentage of issued/
paid-up capital held by
the Company
RARFBERT/
BNERLA
Directly Indirectly  Principal activities

E# B IEXE

100 - Property investment
NERE
100 - Property investment
NERE
100 - Property investment
NERE
- 100 Property investment
nERE
- 100 Property leasing
NERE

- 100 Property leasing
UES

# EREBLZERRRRINEBE R -

EREIARRRR _FEZAF+_A=+—H
ZHBAR  EFERA  ZFARNHAKER
FAZREAREEYEYBRAKEEERE
ZEEED - BEEZRE - BIIMEHBARZ
HiE5 g<RBANILE -
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40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

40. REHERER

41.

Subsequent to year end date, the Group entered into
an agreement with the original property developer to
return certain properties held for sale with carrying
amounts of HK$298,662,000 for a total consideration of
RMB340,000,000, (equivalent to HK$386,363,000). These
properties were all located in Beijing (note 21) and the
proceeds of RMB340,000,000 have been fully collected by
the Group on 8th February 2010.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

41.

REERE  ANEBERMERERET LB
# 0 REBIRMEE 5 298,662,000/8 TR A T
{ESHE M - R (B A AR 340,000,000 7T
(5B 386,363,000/ 7T ) « ZEMEHMR
R (IEE21) - REBR_Z—ZTF=_A/)/\R
BB ER A5 5178 A R #5 340,000,000 7T °

e

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
with changes in presentation in the current year if necessary.

Certain reclassification changes that have been made to
the comparative figures in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December
2008, to be consistent with the presentation in the current
year’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income, are
the interest income on financial assets at amortised cost of
HK$7,809,000 and interest income on equity-linked notes
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$371,000 being reclassified from “Other income” to
“Other net financial income/(expense)”.

ETHBRBRFOHAR  UFEAFEEZHRTA
22 (HBLE) -

HE-ZZNFT-RA=+—BILFERS
EHNBREBBFEEHETEN S RE
& AMZEIERASIRR 2 SR EEZFBWA
7,809,000 8 7L R A AR A FEIIABSER
ZEBEEZ RARHBHRER S WA 371,000
BT i [EME | BN ER [HaEak
AN (%) F ] ZZ5EHDHRTERFE
FAEEBARZEHRTN
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Financial Summary
MBRE

Results
Revenue

Profit/(Loss) before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Minority interests

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Minority interests

ES
LN

BRETSBATET] (E518)
FTefiFs

wFl/ (E1R)

HAEET
AREHEE A
DR ED

EERERE
BEE
BaE

HAET -
AREEBA
LEERELS
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Year ended 31st December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EEAE —TTN\F —TTtF —TTRF —ZTTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT FHIT FHT FHT
76,756 352,469 31,778 311,458 440,887
102,282 86,834 121,861 (112,585) (213)
(6,870) (18,269) (19,639) (2,013) (4,146)
95,412 68,565 102,222 (114,598) (4,359)
95,412 68,565 102,222 (114,598) (4,246)
_ _ = - (113)
95,412 68,565 102,222 (114,598) (4,359)
At 31st December
W+=A=+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—ETAE —TTN\F —TTLF —TTRF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAT FAT FAT FAT
1,540,352 1,257,321 1,156,188 790,025 945,872
(78,322) (94,515) (64,497) (27,363)  (163,899)
1,462,030 1,162,806 1,091,691 762,662 781,973
1,462,030 1,162,806 1,091,691 762,662 781,973
1,462,030 1,162,806 1,091,691 762,662 781,973




PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

i) SN

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL PURPOSE FEHE 2 REM %
Approximate Attributable

gross floor area Nature of interest
Location (square metres) property of the Group Lease term
12 AWBEEE (FHK) MEME AEREEGESR HHFH
Dawning Tower, Shahe Road West, 23,736 Commercial 100% Medium-term
Shenzhen High-tech Park, lease
Nan Shan District,
Shenzhen Shi,
The People’s Republic of China
HEEARERME 23,736 [EES 100% TR A
Ay
A&
Y= B B [ A A
BXARE
The whole of Level 4 and Units 501-506 on 5,181 Commercial 100% Medium-term
Level 5, Block B, Beijing East Gate Plaza, lease

No.29 Dong Zhong Street, Dong Cheng District

Beijing, the PRC

FEARIAE 5,181 [EES 100% R EATHAY
IR RAE

KA 299

I RRIEESBERE

501-506 & & B U[E

Office Units 1 and 2 on 24th Floor 1,661 Commercial 100% Long-term
World-Wide House lease
19 Des Voeux Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

(excluding office unit 2406)

BB 1,661 EES 100% REFEL
IR

=EET 1958

RIKKNE24EIER2E

(BRI A= 2406 Z5))

RYIRRERERAT —FE2A54% 145



PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFFIS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL PURPOSE (CONTINUED) FEHE 2 REWE @)

Approximate Attributable

gross floor area Nature of interest
Location (square metres) property of the Group Lease term
1 2 RWBEEE (FHXK) MEME FEEEGES HHFH
Shop Nos. 4 and 5 on Ground Floor 557 Commercial 100% Medium-term
Flats 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 on 1st Floor and lease

Flats 3 and 4 on 2nd Floor

South Wall Mansion, 63, 63A, 65, 67, 69

and 71 South Wall Road

Kowloon City, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB 557 [EES 100% FREITRAY
k-t

WEE 635  63A%E - 6555 « 675% 695k K% 715k
WA

M RE 4 R E BRI -
—121:-2-3-4-5-6-7k8F

RZE3IR4E

Flat A on 23rd Floor of Block 2 and 112 Residential 100% Long-term
Car Parking Space No. 31 lease
on 2nd Basement

Ronsdale Garden, 25 Tai Hang Drive

Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong

B 112 T=% 100% READ
EaL
RILEL25%%

RRELEE B
WBRAZERME—[E
SRR 31 5%

Unit No. 1611, Beijing Henderson Centre 168 Residential 100% Long-term
18 Jian Guo Men Nei Da Jie, Dong Cheng District lease
Beijing, PRC

F 168 = 100% REIMRL
R

2EIPIA AR 185

bREEHL 1611 BT
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

i) SN

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE HEME
Approximate Attributable
gross floor area Nature of interest
Location (square metres) property of the Group Lease term
1 2 AAOEEER (FHK) MEME FEEEGES HAFH
Blocks 2, 11 and 14 (excluding Units 202, 16,614 Residential 100% Long-term
301 and 302 of Block 14), lease

Shun Jing Yuan,

Northwest Corner of Siyuan Bridge,

Chaoyang District,

Beijing, the PRC

RELE R 16,614 (E=2 100% RERAH
Mt A

[Ep={E

F2 11 %14 (BrEE 148202 = « 301 E X 302 E4h)

The whole of 6th Floor, Wings Building, 315 Commercial 100% Long-term
Nos. 110-116 Queen’s Road Central, lease
Hong Kong

B 315 [HES 100% REFEL
SEAEF110-1165

KERERENEEE

Office No. 2101, 212 Commercial 100% Long-term
21/F World-Wide House, lease

No. 19 Des Voeux Road Central,

Central, Hong Kong.

BEPER 212 [EES 100% REIMA
EaiET 195%

RIEAE 211

2101 PR E

Shops B, C, D and E on Ground Floor and 2,859 Commercial 100% Long-term
Shops A and B on 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors, lease
On Fung Building, 110, 112, 112A, 114, 116

and 118 Caine Road, Mid-Levels,

Hong Kong

BB 2,859 [HES 100% REFEL
H1ERE 110~ 112~ 112A~ 114~ 116

K118 % EREHTB - C* DRER

skl 2  3R4EARBHEH

Office on 30th Floor 1,903 Commercial 100% Long-term
United Centre lease
95 Queensway

Central

Hong Kong

BB 1,903 [EES 100% REAFEAY
HIR

SEE SR

s

EZMWAE

FRBFERERAT —L2hsFsFH 147



PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFFIS

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ENAERE

Registered Attributable
site area interest Nature of  Expected stage
Location (square metres) of the Group property  of construction  Completion date Lease term
R EE S 1]
2 (FH*) [y NEME  EATHER BIRH BOEH

Lot Nos. 1511, 1594, 1595 and 1598, 7,446 100% Agricultural lots Note 1 Note 1 Medium-term
Demarcation District No.91, lease
Kai Leng, Fanling, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Bt 7,446 100% BER Hizt1 Mt RN
MANERS

91471511 ~ 1594 * 1595

K 1598 it

Office Unit 2406 on 24th Floor 9% 100% Commercial - - Long-term
World-Wide House lease
19 Des Vouex Road

Centre

Hong Kong

BB 9% 100% EES - - itk
HIR

BEERIINR

RIKRE 2412 2406

Workshop No. 18 on 22nd Floor 126 100% Commercial - - Long-term
Honour Industrial Center lease
6 Sun Yip Street

Siu Sai Wan

Hong Kong

A 126 100% [ -
A

CIEE

RNLERL

NIEIBE

RHED

Note 1: BT -

Tk

ZMER ZFERER - Bt - BRARFBEIT © FAK
Accordingly, no construction has commenced and no expected completion BEREE AT ER A E

The Group has not yet finalised any construction plan for the site. AEBERAKZE

date can be concluded.
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Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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